




44th    

Annual Report 
& ACCOUNTS 

2023-2024 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 

CIN: L51909WB1980PLC033010 

(AN ISO:9001, ISO : 14001 & OHSAS 18001 Certified Company) 

 

Exporters & Manufacturers of LPG Cylinders, Self Closing Valves, 

Domestic Pressure Regulators 

A Government Recognized Export House 



 

 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS :  

SHRI N. K. SUREKA (DIN: 00054929) MANAGING DIRECTOR 

SMT. PREMLATA. SUREKA (DIN: 00060247)                   DIRECTOR 

SMT. VEENA AGGARWAL (00060415)                        DIRECTOR 

SHRI ATUL KUMAR (DIN: 00060233)                        DIRECTOR  

SHRI BIRENDRA KUMAR (08666368)                                           DIRECTOR 

SHRI MANOHAR MENGHRAJ PUNJABI (10213816)                   DIRECTOR 

 

 

COMPANY SECRETARY : ACS DIVYA AGARWAL 

 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER : SHRI D.K. GUPTA 

 
 

STATUTORY AUDITORS : M/S NKSC & Co. 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

DELHI OFFICE: 208, VATS MARKET 

(SHIVA MARKET), 

PITAMPURA, DELHI-110034 

 

 

COST AUDITORS : M/S JAI PRAKASH & CO., 
172-B, BHIKAM COLONY, 

MAIN TIGAON ROAD, 

BALLABGARH, FARIDABAD-121004 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS : JYOTI ARYA & ASSOCIATES. 

K-009, DDA LIG FLATS, POCKET-C, 
MOLARBAND, NEW DELHI-110076 

 
 

BANKERS : KARNATAKA BANK LIMITED  

  ICICI BANK 

  CANARA BANK  

                                                                        JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK 

  INDIAAN BANK  

 
REGISTERED OFFICE : ANAND JYOTI BUILDING 

ROOM NO. 107, 1
ST

 FLOOR 
41, NETAJI SUBHAS ROAD 

KOLKATA-700 001 

 
 

HEAD OFFICE : 602, CHIRANJIV TOWER 

43, NEHRU PLACE 

NEW DELHI -110 019 

 
 

WORKS :  NEAR GOUCHI OCTROI POST 

SOHNA ROAD, SECTOR-25, 

FARIDABAD-121 004 

HARYANA (INDIA) 

 

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER : M/S. BEETAL FINANCIAL & COMPUTER SERVICES (P) LTD., 

AGENTS BEETAL HOUSE, 99, MADANGIR, BEHIND LOCAL SHOPPING 
CENTRE, NEAR DADA HARSUKH DASS MANDIR, NEW 

DELHI – 110062. 

 
 

SHARES LISTED AT : - BOMBAY STOCK EXCHANGE LTD. (BSE) 
- CALCUTTA STOCK EXCHANGE LTD. (CSE) 

-ISIN : INE150D01027 

MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 44
th
 ANNUAL REPORT 



44th 
43rd  

MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 
 

 

 

NOTICE 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Forty-Forth (44
th

) Annual General Meeting of the Members of MAURIA UDYOG 

LIMITED will be held on Wednesday, the 11
th

 September, 2024 at 03:00 P.M.(IST) through Video Conferencing(“VC”) 

or Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business: 

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company including the Audited Balance Sheet as 

at 31
st
 March, 2024, Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 together with the reports of the 

Board of Directors and the Auditors. 

 

2. To appoint a director in place of Shri Navneet Kumar Sureka (DIN: 00054929),  who retires by rotation and, being 

eligible, offers her-self for re- appointment. 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

ITEM NO. 03:  ISSUANCE OF EQUITY SHARES TO PRIVATE INVESTORS BY WAY OF PREFERENTIAL ISSUE 

(“INVESTOR PREFERENTIAL ISSUE”):  

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modifications, as a Special Resolution:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 23, Section 42, Section 62(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, and other applicable 

rules made thereunder (including any statutory amendments, modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) 

(“Act”), enabling provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of Mauria Udyog Limited 

(“Company”) and applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements)  

 

Regulations, 2018, as amended (“SEBI ICDR Regulations”), Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of 

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (“SEBI Takeover Regulations”), Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“SEBI LODR Regulations”), the applicable rules, 

notifications, guidelines issued by various authorities including but not limited to the Government of India, the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) and other competent authorities including BSE Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and subject to (a) 

approvals, permissions, sanctions and consents as may be necessary from any regulatory and other appropriate authorities, as 

applicable, and (b) subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed by any of them while granting such approvals, 

permissions, sanctions and consents, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, 

which term shall be deemed to include any committee which the Board has constituted or may constitute to exercise its powers, 

including the powers conferred by this resolution), the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded, to create, 

issue, offer and allot on a preferential basis, in one or more tranches up to:  

 

(i) Upto 27,13,332 (Twenty-Seven Lakhs Thirteen Thousand Three Hundred and Thirty Two Only) fully paid-up equity 

shares of the Company having face value of INR 1/- (Indian Rupee One Only) (“Investors Equity Shares”) at an issue 

price of INR 15/- (Indian Rupee Fifteen Only) each (“Equity Issue Price”) aggregating to INR 4,06,99,980/- (Indian 

Rupees Four Crore Six Lakhs Ninety Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Eighty Only) (“Equity Issue Size”); and 

  

which is not less than the floor price determined in accordance with Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, to persons, being 

private investors, listed below (“Proposed Investors”), on such terms and conditions as may be determined by the Board in 

accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and other applicable laws (“Investors Preferential Issue”). 
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 Equity shares to be allotted to the following proposed investor: -  

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Proposed 

Investor 

No. of Equity 

Shares to be 

alloted 

Amount to be 

paid for Equity 

Shares (INR) 

1 Pramod Kumar Sultania 100000 1500000 

2 ItCons E-Solutions Ltd 666666 9999990 

3 Deepak Kharwad HUF 350000 5250000 

4 Rajiv Jain 66666 999990 

5 Salhydrau Industries Private 

Limited 350000 5250000 

6 Kapish Jain 230000 3450000 

7 VS Finycore Pvt Ltd 400000 6000000 

8 Saurav Raidhani 200000 3000000 

9 Himanshu Jain 50000 750000 

10 Devang Shah 50000 750000 

11 Rajesh Kumar Chandan 75000 1125000 

12 Lakshay Gupta 75000 1125000 

13 Kusum Raheja 100000 1500000 

 Total 2713332 40699980 

 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the ‘relevant date’ for the purpose of determination of the floor price for issue of the Investor 

Equity Shares and Investor Equity share with warrants under the Investors Preferential Issue, as above, as per provisions of Chapter 

V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and other applicable laws is Monday, August 12, 2024 (“Relevant Date”), being the date 30 

(Thirty) days prior to the date on which the meeting viz. this Annual General Meeting of members of the Company is proposed to 

be held to consider and approve the Investors Preferential Issue. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT without prejudice to the generality of the above resolution, the issue of the Investors Equity 

Shares under the Investors Preferential Issue shall be subject to the following terms and conditions apart from other applicable terms 

as prescribed under applicable laws:  

 

a. The Investors Equity Shares to be issued and allotted shall be fully paid-up and rank pari-passu with the existing equity shares of 

the Company in all respects (including with respect to dividend and voting powers) from the date of allotment thereof, and be 

subject to the requirements of all applicable laws and shall be subject to the provisions of the memorandum of association and 

articles of association of the Company; 

 

 b. The Investors Equity Shares shall be allotted by the Company to the Proposed Investors in dematerialized form within a period 

of 15 (fifteen) days from the date of passing of this special resolution by members of the Company, provided that, where the issue 

and allotment of the said Investors Equity Shares is pending on account of pendency of approval of any regulatory authority 

(including, but not limited to the Stock Exchange), the issue and allotment shall be completed within a period of 15 (fifteen) days 

from the date of receipt of last of such approvals;  

 

c. The Investors Equity Shares to be allotted shall be subject to lock-in for such period as specified in the provisions of Chapter V of 

the SEBI ICDR Regulations and any other applicable law for the time being in force;  

 

d. The pre-preferential shareholding, if any, of the Proposed Investors shall be under lock-in for such period as may be prescribed 

under Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations; and 

 

e. The Investors Equity Shares to be allotted to the Proposed Investors shall be listed on the Stock Exchange where the existing 

equity shares of the Company are listed, subject to the receipt of necessary regulatory permissions and approvals as the case may be. 
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ITEM NO 04: ISSUANCE OF WARRANTS ON A PREFERENTIAL BASIS TO THE PERSONS BELONGING TO NON- 

PROMOTER, PUBLIC CATEGORY OF THE COMPANY (“INVESTOR PREFERENTIAL ISSUE”):  
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modifications, as a Special Resolution: 

 

Up to 41,96,666  (Forty-One Lakhs Ninety-Six Thousand Six Hundred And Sixty Six Only) Fully Convertible Warrants 

(“Warrants”), to the persons belonging to “Non-Promoter, Public Category” (Proposed Allottees), at an issue price of INR 

15/- (Rupees Fifteen Only) per Warrant, which is higher than the floor price determined in accordance with the provisions 

of Chapter V of ICDR Regulations, for an aggregate amount of up to INR 6,29,49,990 (Rupees Six Crores Twenty Nine 

Lakhs Forty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety Only), 

 

“RESOLVED THAT  pursuant to the provisions of Section 42, Section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended 

including rules notified thereunder (“Act”) read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, 

as amended and other applicable provisions, if any (including any statutory modifications(s) or reenactment thereof, for 

the time being in force), Chapter V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended (“ICDR Regulations”), Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, (“Listing Regulations”), enabling provisions of 

the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, applicable rules, notifications and circulars issued by the 

Reserve Bank of India and such other acts / rules / regulations as may be applicable and subject to necessary approvals / 

consents, if any, from the competent statutory and / or regulatory authorities, as may be applicable or necessary including 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) and BSE Limited (“BSE”) and subject to such terms and 

condition(s), alteration(s), correction(s), change(s) and/or modification(s) as may be prescribed by any of the competent 

statutory and / or regulatory authorities while granting consent(s), permission(s) or approval(s), and which may be agreed 

to by the board of directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which terms shall be deemed to include 

any committee(s) which the Board may have constituted or hereinafter constitute to exercise its power including the 

powers conferred by this resolution) and subject to any other alteration(s), modification(s), condition(s), correction(s), 

change(s) and variation(s) that may be decided by the Board in its absolute discretion, the consent of the members of the 

Company be and is hereby accorded to offer, issue and allot, from time to time in one or more tranches, up to 41,96,666  

(Forty-One Lakhs Ninety-Six Thousand Six Hundred And Sixty Six Only) warrants, each convertible into, or 

exchangeable for, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of the Company having face value of INR 1/- (Indian Rupees One 

Only) (“Equity Share”) each (“Warrants”) at a price (including the Warrant Subscription Price and the Warrant Exercise 

Price) of INR 15/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen only) each payable in cash (“Warrant Issue Price”), aggregating upto INR 

6,29,49,990 (Rupees Six Crores Twenty Nine Lakhs Forty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety Only), Proposed 

Allottees on a preferential basis to persons forming part of the Non-promoter group of the Company whose details are set 

out below subject to the maximum entitlement of each Warrants Holder as specified below and upon receipt of INR 3.75/- 

( Indian Rupees Three and Paisa Seventy Five Only) for each Warrants, which is equivalent to 25% (twenty five per cent) 

of the Warrant Issue Price as upfront payment (“Warrant Subscription Price”) entitling the Proposed Allottees to apply for 

and get allotted one fully paid-up equity share of the Company of face value of INR 1/- (Indian Rupee One Only) each 

against every Warrant held, in one or more tranches within a maximum period of 18 (eighteen) months from the date of 

allotment of Warrants, on payment of INR 11.25/-(Indian Rupees Eleven Hundred and Paisa Twenty Five only) which is 

equivalent to 75% (Seventy five per cent) of the Warrant Issue Price (“Warrant Exercise Price”), for each Warrant 

proposed to be converted, in such manner and upon such terms and conditions as may be deemed appropriate by the Board 

in accordance with the terms of this issue, provisions of ICDR Regulations, or other applicable laws in this respect: 

 

 

Sl. 

No 

Name Of Proposed 

Allottee 
Numbe

r of 

Warra

nts to 

be 

Alloted 

Amount to 

be paid for 

Warrants 

(INR) 

Number of 

Shares to 

be Issued 

assuming 

full 

conversion 

of 

Warrants 

1. SBJ Management 150000 22500000 1500000 
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Services Pvt Ltd 0 

2. Pramod Kumar Sultania 100000 1500000 100000 

3. Yoshi Envirotech Private 

Limited 666666 9999990 666666 

4. Babulal Kharwad HUF 350000 5250000 350000 

5. Kapish Jain 230000 3450000 230000 

6 VS Finycore Pvt Ltd 400000 6000000 400000 

7 Harsh Kumar Goyal 100000 1500000 100000 

8 Saurav Raidhani 300000 4500000 300000 

9 Himanshu Jain 100000 1500000 100000 

10 
Devang Shah 100000 1500000 100000 

11 Rajesh Kumar Chandan 125000 1875000 125000 

12 Lakshay Gupta 125000 1875000 125000 

13 Kusum Raheja 100000 1500000 100000 

 Total 419666

6 62949990 4196666 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company hereby notes and takes on record that in accordance with the provisions of 

Regulation 161 of the ICDR Regulations, the “Relevant Date” for the purpose of calculating the floor price for the issue of equity 

shares of the Company pursuant to the exercise of conversion of the Warrants is determined to be Monday, August 12, 2024, and 

the floor price for the preferential issue on the aforesaid Relevant Date pursuant to regulation 164(1) of the ICDR Regulations is 

INR 15/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen only).  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT without prejudice to the generality of the above, the Warrants issued shall be subject to the 

following terms and conditions:  

 

a. In accordance with the provisions of Chapter V of ICDR Regulations, 25% (Twenty Five Per Cent) of the Warrant Issue Price, 

shall be paid by the Proposed Allottees to the Company on or before allotment of the Warrants and the balance consideration i.e. 

75% (Seventy-Five Per Cent) of the Warrant Issue Price shall be paid at the time of exercise of option to apply for fully paid –up 

Equity shares of INR 1/- (Indian Rupees One Only) each of the Company, against each such Warrants held by the Proposed 

Allottees.  

 

b. The Proposed Allottees shall be entitled to exercise his option to convert any or all of the warrants into equity shares of the 

Company in one or more tranches after giving a written notice to the Company, specifying the number of warrants proposed to be 

exercised along with the aggregate Warrant Exercise Price payable thereon, without any further approval from the shareholders of 

the Company prior to or at the time of conversion. The Company shall accordingly, issue and allot the corresponding number of 

equity shares of the Company to the Proposed Allottees.  

 

c. The Proposed Allottees shall make payment of Warrant Subscription Price and Warrant Exercise Price from their own bank 

account into to the designated bank account of the Company. 

 

d. In terms of Regulation 166 of the ICDR Regulations, the price of Warrants determined above and the number of Equity Shares to 

be allotted on exercise of the Warrants shall be subject to appropriate adjustments, if applicable. If the amount payable on account 

of the re-computation of price is not paid within the time stipulated in the ICDR Regulations, the Warrants shall continue to be 

locked- in till the time such amount is paid by the Proposed Allottees.  

 

e. Upon exercise of the option by the Proposed Allottees, the Company shall issue and allot appropriate number of Equity Shares 

and perform all such actions as are required including to credit the same to the designated securities demat account of the Proposed 

Allottees. 

 

f. The tenure of Warrants shall not exceed 18 (eighteen) months from the date of allotment. If the entitlement against the Warrants 

to apply for the Equity Shares of the Company is not exercised by the Proposed Allottees within the aforesaid period of 18 

(eighteen) months, the entitlement of the Proposed Allottees to apply for Equity Shares of the Company along with the rights 

attached thereto shall expire and any amount paid by the Proposed Allottees on such Warrants shall stand forfeited.  
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g. The Equity Shares so allotted on exercise of the Warrants shall be in dematerialized form and shall be subject to the provisions of 

the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and shall rank pari passu with the then existing Equity Shares of the 

Company, including entitlement to voting powers and dividend. 

 

 h. The Warrants by itself, until exercised and converted into equity shares, shall not give to the Proposed Allottees thereof any 

rights with respect to that of an Equity shareholder of the Company.  

 

i. The Warrants and Equity Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of the Warrants shall be locked-in as prescribed under the ICDR 

Regulations.”  

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the pre-preferential allotment shareholding of the Proposed Allottees, if any, in the Company 

shall also be subject to lock-in as per the provisions of the ICDR Regulations.”  

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board, be and is hereby, jointly and 

severally authorized on behalf of the Company to do all such other acts, deeds, matters and things as the Board may, in its absolute 

discretion, deem necessary or desirable for such purpose, without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the 

members of the Company to resolve and settle any matter, question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in regard to the issuance and 

allotment of Warrants and the equity shares to be allotted pursuant to the conversion of the Warrants, without requiring any further 

approval of the Members, and to authorize all such persons as may be deemed necessary, in connection therewith and incidental 

thereto as the Board in its absolute discretion shall deem fit;” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to, do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in 

its absolute discretion deem necessary or desirable to give effect to the above resolutions, including without limitation to issue and 

allot Equity Shares upon exercise of the Warrants, to issue certificates/ clarifications on the issue and allotment of Warrants and 

thereafter allotment of Equity Shares further to exercise of the Warrants, effecting any modifications to the foregoing (including to 

determine, vary, modify or alter any of the terms and conditions of the Warrants including deciding the size and timing of any 

tranche of the Warrants), entering into contracts, arrangements, agreements, memorandum, documents to give effect to the 

resolutions above (including for appointment of agencies, consultants, intermediaries and advisors for managing issuance of 

Warrants and listing and trading of Equity Shares issued on exercise of Warrants), including making applications to BSE Limited 

for obtaining of in-principle approval, filing of requisite documents with the Registrar of Companies (“ROC”), National Securities 

Depository Limited (“NSDL”), Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) and/ or such other authorities as may be 

necessary for the purpose, and to take all such steps as may be necessary for the admission of the Warrants and Equity Shares (to be 

issued on exercise of the Warrants) with the depositories, viz. NSDL and CDSL and for the credit of such Warrants / Shares to the 

respective dematerialized securities account of the Proposed Allottees, and to delegate all or any of the powers conferred on it by 

this resolution to any director(s) or officer(s) of the Company and to revoke and substitute such delegation from time to time, as 

deemed fit by the Board, to give effect to the above resolutions and also to initiate all necessary actions for and to settle all 

questions, difficulties, disputes or doubts whatsoever that may arise, without limitation in connection with the issue and utilization 

of proceeds thereof, and take all steps and decisions in this regard, without being required to seek any further consent or approval of 

the members of the Company or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto 

expressly by the authority of this resolution.” 

 

ITEM No. 05. To approve entering into Transactions with Related Parties and in this regard to consider and if thought 

fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.  

 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), the applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder and other applicable provisions, if any, [including any statutory 

modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force], the Company’s Policy on 

Materiality of and Dealing with Related Party Transactions, and subject to such approval(s), consent(s), permission(s) as may 

be necessary from time to time and based on the approval/ recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors 

of the Company, approval of the Members be accorded to the Company to enter into/ continue with the existing Related Party 

Transaction(s)/ Contract(s)/ Arrangement(s)/ Agreement(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken 

together or series of transactions or otherwise) falling within the definition of ‘Related Party Transaction’ under Regulation 

2(1)(zc) of the Listing Regulations read with the definition of ‘Related Party’ under Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing 

Regulations in the course of: i) Sale and purchase of any goods and material; ii) Availing / rendering of any services; iii) 

Sharing or usage of each other’s resources and reimbursement of expenses, licensing of technology and intellectual property 
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rights, receipt of royalty / brand usage; iv) Purchase / sale / transfer / exchange / lease of business assets including property, 

plant and equipment, Intangible assets, transfer of technology to meet the business objectives and requirements; v) Providing 

fund based and non-fund based support including equity / debt / Inter-corporate deposits (ICD), convertible / non-convertible 

instruments / Guarantee/ security etc., in connection with loans provided and Interest, commission and other related income / 

expenses.vi) Any transfer of resources, services or obligations to meet its objectives / requirements; with Related Parties as 

detailed in the explanatory statement to this Resolution, on such material terms and conditions as mentioned therein and as may 

be mutually agreed between the parties and the Company, for the financial year FY 2024-25, provided that the said contract(s)/ 

arrangement(s)/ agreement(s)/ transaction(s) shall be carried out in the ordinary course of business of the Company and at arm’s 

length basis. 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) be authorised to do 

all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion and to take all such steps as may be required 

in this connection including finalising and executing necessary contract(s), scheme(s), agreement(s) and such other documents 

as may be required, seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this Resolution, for and on behalf of the Company and 

settling all such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such decisions with regard to 

the powers herein conferred to, without being required to seek further consent or approval of the Members or otherwise to the 

end and intent that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this 

Resolution.  

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT all actions taken by the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) 

in connection with any matter referred to or contemplated in this Resolution, be approved, ratified and confirmed in all 

respects.” 

 

 

   ITEM NO  06:    To Ratify the appointment and remuneration of Cost Auditor of the Company  for the financial year 
ending March, 2025 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“ RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, 

for the time being in force, Jai Prakash &Co., the Cost Auditors (Firm Regd. No.-100572) appointed by the Board of 

Directors of the Company, to conduct the Audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March, 

31, 2025, be paid remuneration of Rs. 55,000/-” (Rupees Fifty-five Thousand Only). 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and 

take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Notes: 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 

SD/- 

(DIVYA AGARWAL) 

COMPANY SECRETARY 

ROOM NO. 107, 1
ST

FLOOR, 

ANAND JYOTI BUILDING, 

41, NETAJI SUBHAS ROAD, 

KOLKATA-700001 

(WEST BENGAL) 
CIN: L51909WB1980PLC033010 

Date: August 20, 2024. 



44th 
MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

1 . As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th April, 

2020, General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020, General Circular No. 22/2020 dated 15th June, 2020, General 

Circular No. 33/2020 dated 28th September, 2020, General Circular No. 39/2020 dated 31st December, 2020, Circular no. 

02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021, Circular No. 19/2021 dated 8th December, 2021 and Circular No. 21/2021 dated 14th 

December, 2021 and Circular No. 2/2022 dated 5th May, 2022 and Circular No.10/2022 dated 28th December, 2022 & General 

Circular No.09/2023 dated 25th September, 2023 (collectively “MCA Circulars”) and Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(“SEBI”) vide its circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 and circular no. SEBI/ 

HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th January, 2021,   &  SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS_Div2/P/CIR/2021/697  December 22,2021 

(collectively “SEBI Circulars”)  , have permitted companies to conduct AGM through VC or other audio visual means, subject 

to compliance of various conditions mentioned therein. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars 

and the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the forthcoming 44
th

 AGM of Mauria Udyog Ltd. is being convened and 

conducted through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate 

in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM 

 

2. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the 

members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 

2013, representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can 

attend the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 

Since the AGM will be held through VC or OAVM, no Route Map is being provided with the Notice. 
 

3. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 

2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at 

the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited 

(NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized E-Voting agency. The facility of casting votes 

by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by 

.NSDL 

 
 

4. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 

commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the 

AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not 

include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without 

restriction on account of first come first served basis. 
 

5. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining 

the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the 

AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.mauria.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the 

websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com . The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the 

website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) 

i.e.www.evotingindia.com . 

 

7. The AGM is being convened and conducted through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 

dated 13th April, 2020, General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020, General Circular No. 22/2020 dated 15th 

June, 2020, General Circular No. 33/2020 dated 28th September, 2020, General Circular No. 39/2020 dated 31st 

December, 2020, Circular no. 02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021, Circular No. 19/2021 dated 8th December, 2021 and 

Circular No. 21/2021 dated 14th December, 2021 and Circular No. 2/2022 dated 5th May, 2022 and Circular No.10/2022 

dated 28th December, 2022 (collectively “MCA Circulars”) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide 
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its circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 and circular no. SEBI/ 

HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th January, 2021 (collectively “SEBI Circulars”). . 

 

8. Dispatch of Annual Report through E-mail 

 

In accordance with the MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the 44
th
  AGM alongwith the Annual Report of the 

Company for the financial year 2023-24 are being sent only through e-mail, to those Members whose e-mail addresses are 

registered with the Company or the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (the “RTA”), i.e., M/s. BEETAL Financial & 

Computers Services Pvt. Ltd. or the Depository Participant(s). Members  may please  note  that  the  Notice and the 

Annual Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 shall be available on the websites of the Company i .e . , 

www.mauria.com,   the Stock Exchanges where Equity Shares of the Company are listed i.e. BSE Limited at 

www.bseindia.com and the website National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL), i.e., www.evoting.com. 

 

9. Only registered members and/or any proxy appointed by such registered member of the Company holding shares as on 

the Cut-off date i.e. Wednesday. 04
th

 September, 2024, decided for the purpose, may attend and vote at the Annual 

General Meeting as provided under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

10. The Register of members and share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Thursday, 05
th

  

September, 2024 to Wednesday, the 11
th

 September, 2024 (both days inclusive). 

 

11. Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special Business to 

be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto. 

 

12. SEBI mandates transfers of securities only in dematerialized mode vide Notification No.: SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 

dated June 8, 2018. In view of the above and to avail various benefits of dematerialization, members are advised to 

dematerialize shares held by them in physical form. 
 

6. SEBI mandates updation of Shareholders’ PAN and Bank details vide SEBI Circular No.: 

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/24 dated June 08, 2018. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, 

requested to submit their PAN to their depository participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form are required to 

submit their PAN details to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. 

 

7. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. 

Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their depository 

participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form are required to submit their PAN details to the Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agent of the Company. 

 

8. Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations, in respect of directors seeking 

appointment/re-appointment at the AGM, forms part of the Notice. 

 

9. All the documents referred to in the notice will be available for inspection at the Company’s registered office during 

normal business hours on all working days upto the date of AGM. The Register of Directors and Key managerial 

Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under section 170 of the Companies Act 2013(Act), and the Register of 

Contracts or Arrangements in which directors are interested, maintained under section 189 of the Act, will be available 

for inspection by the members at the AGM. 

 

10. Members whose shareholding is in electronic mode are requested to direct change of address, contact details and bank 

account details, in case of change, to their respective depository participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form 

are requested to update their addresses and contact details with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company, 

if there is any change. 

 

11. In terms of section 101 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with the rules made thereunder, the Company 

forwarded soft copies of all the documents to be sent to the shareholders including the General Meeting notices along 

with Audited Accounts and requisite reports thereon to all those members who have registered their e-mail ids with their 

respective DPs or with the Share Transfer Agent of the Company. Please note that these documents are also available on 

the Company’s Website at www.mauria.com . All the members are requested to ensure to keep their e-mail addresses 

http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.evoting.com/


44th 
MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 

 

updated with the Depository Participants or by writing to the Company at secretarial@mauria.com quoting their folio 

number(s) or their DP/ CLIENT IDs. 

 

12. Voting Rights: Shareholders holding equity shares shall have one vote per share as shown against their holding and 

shareholders. 

 

13. Voting through electronic means: 

 

a. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and 

Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a member of the 

Company holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form may exercise his right to vote by 

electronic means in respect of the resolution(s) contained in this notice. 

b. The Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means to its members to enable them to cast their votes 

through such voting. The Company has engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 

to provide remote e-voting facility (i.e. the facility of casting votes by a member by using an electronic voting 

system from a place other than the venue of a general meeting). 

c. The Company shall also provide facility for voting through Ballot/polling paper which shall be available at the 

meeting and members attending the meeting who have not already casted their vote by remote e-voting shall be able 

to exercise their right to vote at the meeting 

d. The members who have exercised their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but 

shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

e. The Board of Directors have appointed CS Jyoti Arya, of JYOTI ARYA & ASSOCIATES, PCS Delhi   as the 
Scrutinizer, for conducting the voting / poll and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

f. The cut-off date for the purpose of voting (including remote e-voting) in the meeting is Wednesday, 04
th

  

September, 2024.  

g. Members are requested to carefully read the instructions for remote e-voting before casting their vote. 
h. The remote e-voting facility will be available during the following period after which the portal shall forthwith be 

blocked and shall not be available: 

 
COMMENCMENT OF E-VOTING END OF E-VOTING 

Sunday, 08
th

 September, 2024 at 09.00 A.M Tuesday, 10 September 2024 at 5.00 P.M. 

 

a. Persons who have acquired shares and became members of the Company after dispatch of the Notice of AGM but 

before the cut-off date of Wednesday, 04
th

 September, 2024. , may obtained their user ID and password for e-

voting from the Company’s Registrar and share transfer Agent or NSDL. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL 

MEETING ARE AS UNDER:- 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on Sunday, 08
th

 September, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Tuesday, 10 

September 2024 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. 

The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date 

(cut-off date) i.e. Wednesday 04
th

 September 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of 

shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on 

the cut-off date, being Wednesday 04
th

 September 2024. 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode 

mailto:secretarial@mauria.com


44th 
MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 

 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 

Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order 

to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of 

NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page 

click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 

which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt 

you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 

successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 

services under Value added services. Click on “Access to 

e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to 

see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 

service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to 

e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 

during the meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 

register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 

“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 

home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the 

icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. 

You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit 

demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP 

and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 

successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click 

on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 

NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 

NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 

meeting.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile 

App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code 

mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can 

login through their existing user id and password. Option 

will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 

further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are 

requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and 

click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then 

user your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to 

see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the 

evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 

company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be 

able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider 

for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 

system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user 

can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 

register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com 

and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then 

click on registration option. 

 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 

providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-

Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. 

The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 

registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able 

to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress 

and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 

Service Providers. 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Individual Shareholders (holding 

securities in demat mode) login 

through their depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 

account through your Depository Participant registered with 

NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be 

able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be 

redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 

will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting 

& voting during the meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 

Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 

through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL 
Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 

helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.com or call at 

022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 

helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 

22 55 33 

 

  

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities 

in physical mode. 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 

eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 

i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 

Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 

Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 

IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 

registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and 

EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 

101456001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 

login and cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 

‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 

password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 

change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 

‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email 

sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the 

attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file 

is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL 

account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains 

your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 

process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  
 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten 

your password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your 

PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on 

the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 

check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares 

and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting 

your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed 

under “Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which 

you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

 

 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 

Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly 

authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to pcsjyotiarya@gmail.com with a 

copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also 

upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution 

/ Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 

password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the 

correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 

User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user 

manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000  

send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre- Senior Manager at evoting@nsdl.com  

 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 

password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 

certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy 

of Aadhar Card) by email to secretarial@mauria.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary 

ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN 

card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to secretarial@mauria.com. If you are an Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at                 

step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password 

for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 

Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID 

correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-

voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have 

not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall 

be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. However, they will 

not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

mailto:pcsjyotiarya@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the 

day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS 

UNDER: 

 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting 

system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After 

successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You 

are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be 

available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the 

members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may 

retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

  

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 

during the meeting. 

 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 

Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 

recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning 

their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at secretarial@mauria.com).                     

The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

6. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker 

by sending their request in advance atleast 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio 

number, email id, mobile number at secretarial@mauria.com). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM 

but have queries may send their queries in advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 

number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the company 

suitably by email. 

 

7. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions 

during the meeting. 

 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 

COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 

share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy 

of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id secretarial@mauria.com 
 

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) 

 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 

Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

 

 

 

mailto:secretarial@mauria.com
mailto:secretarial@mauria.com
mailto:secretarial@mauria.com
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

(Pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”), attached to the Notice dated  20
th

 August, 2024 convening the 44
th

  

Annual General Meeting) 

 

Item No 03 :  Issuance of equity shares  to private investors by way of preferential issue:  

 

The Company intends to raise funds from the Proposed Investors by issuance of the Investors Equity Shares for the purpose of 

working capital requirement, etc. Therefore, the Board, in its meeting held on Monday August 12, 2024, has approved the proposal for 

issuance of the Investors Equity Shares to the Proposed Investors under the Investors Preferential Issue as per terms stated in the 

aforesaid resolution, subject to, inter alia, approval of the members of the Company. Therefore, this resolution is recommended to the 

members of the Company for their consideration and approval pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42, 62(1)(c) read with Rule 14 of 

the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and Rule 13 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) 

Rules, 2014 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations.  

 

The disclosure required in terms of provisions of Rule 13(2)(d) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, Rule 

14(1) of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations are as follows: 

 

 a.        Particulars of the offer including date of passing of Board resolution:  

 

The Board, in its meeting held on Monday, August 12, 2024, has approved the proposal for the creation, offer, issuance and allotment 

of up to:  

 

(i) 27,13,332 (Twenty Seven Lakhs Thirteen Thousand Three Hundred and Thirty Two Only) fully paid-up equity shares of 

the Company having face value of INR 1/- (Indian Rupee One Only) (“Investors Equity Shares”) at an issue price of 

INR 15/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen Only) each (“Equity Issue Price”) aggregating up to INR 4,06,99,980/- (Rupees Four 

Crores Six Lakhs Ninety Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Eighty only), (“Equity Issue Size”); which is not less than 

the floor price determined in accordance with Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, to persons, being private 

investors, listed below (“Proposed Investors”) on such terms and conditions as may be determined by the Board in 

accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and other applicable laws (“Investors Preferential Issue”). The other 

significant details of the offer are contained as part of the below other disclosures. 

 

 b.            The Objects of the issue:  

 

The Company intends to utilize the proceeds raised through the Preferential Issue (“Issue Proceeds”) towards the following 

objects: 

 

1. Working Capital Requirements 

2. Repayment of outstanding Secured Loans 

  

c.  Utilization of Issue Proceeds  

 

Given that the funds to be received against Investors Equity Shares and the quantum of funds required on different dates may 

vary, therefore, the broad range of intended use of the Issue Proceeds for the above Objects is set out hereinbelow:  

 

 

Sr. No.  Particulars  Total estimated 

amount to be utilized 

for each of the 

Objects (Rs. In 

Crores) 

Tentative timelines 

for utilization of 

Issue Proceeds from 

the date of receipt of 

funds 

1 Working capital 

requirements 

2,03,49,990 3 to 4 months 
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2 Repayment of 

outstanding Secured 

Loans   

 

2,03,49,990 3 to 4 months 

 Total 4,06,99,980  

 

 

The entire Issue Proceeds would be utilized for all the aforementioned Objects, in phases, as per the Company’s business 

requirements and availability of Issue Proceeds, within 3 (Three) to 4 (Four) months from the date of receipt of funds for the 

Equity Shares (as set out herein).  

 

In terms of the BSE Circular No. 20221213-47 dated December 13, 2022, the amount specified for the aforementioned 

Objects may deviate +/- 10% depending upon the future circumstances, given that the Objects are based on management 

estimates and other commercial and technical factors. Accordingly, the same is dependent on a variety of factors such as 

financial, market and sectoral conditions, business performance and strategy, competition and other external factors, which 

may not be within the control of the Company and may result in modifications to the proposed schedule for utilization of the 

Issue Proceeds at the discretion of the Board, subject to compliance with applicable laws.  

 

If the Issue Proceeds are not utilised (in full or in part) for the Objects during the period stated above due to any such factors, 

the remaining Issue Proceeds shall be utilised in subsequent periods in such manner as may be determined by the Board, in 

accordance with applicable laws. This may entail rescheduling and revising the planned expenditure and funding requirements 

and increasing or decreasing the expenditure for a particular purpose from the planned expenditure as may be determined by 

the Board, subject to compliance with applicable laws. 

 

d.  Interim Use of Issue Proceeds  

 

Our Company, in accordance with the policies formulated by our Board from time to time, will have flexibility to deploy the 

Issue Proceeds. Pending complete utilization of the Issue Proceeds for the Objects described above, our Company intends to, 

inter alia, invest the Issue Proceeds in money market instruments including money market mutual funds, deposits in scheduled 

commercial banks, securities issued by government of India or any other investments as permitted under applicable laws. 

 

 e.  Monitoring of utilization of funds: 

 

i). Given that the issue size doesn’t exceeds Rs. 100 Crore (Indian Rupees One Hundred Crore), the Company doesn’t 

required to appoint monitoring agency in terms of Regulation 162A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

 

f.  Kinds of securities offered, the total number of shares or other securities to be issued, the price at which security is 

being offered and amount which the Company intends to raise by way of such securities:  

 

The Company propose to issue in one or more tranches up to 27,13,332 (Twenty Seven Lakhs Thirteen Thousand Three 

Hundred and Thirty Two Only) fully paid-up equity shares of the Company having face value of INR 1/- (Indian Rupees One 

Only) (“Investors Equity Shares”) at an issue price of INR 15/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen Only) each (“Equity Issue Price”) 

aggregating up to INR  4,06,99,980/- (Rupees Four Crores Six Lakhs Ninety Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Eighty only) 

(“Equity Issue Size”); which is not less than the floor price determined in accordance with Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations.  

 

g.  Basis on which the price has been arrived at along with report of the registered valuer:  

 

 

i. In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the floor price at which the Equity Shares can be issued is INR 15/- (Indian 

Rupees Fifteen Only) respectively, as per the pricing formula prescribed under the SEBI ICDR Regulations for the 

Preferential Issue and is the highest of the following:  

 

a.  90 (ninety) trading days volume weighted average price (VWAP) of the equity shares of the Company preceding the 

Relevant Date: i.e. Rs. 12.72/- (Indian Rupees Twelve and Paisa Seventy Two Only) per equity share; 
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 b.  10 (ten) trading days volume weighted average price (VWAP) of the equity shares of the Company preceding the 

Relevant Date: i.e. Rs. 14.25/- (Indian Rupees Fourteen and Paisa Twenty-Five Only) per equity share.  

 

c.  Floor price determined in accordance with the provisions of the articles of association of the Company. However, the 

articles of association of the Company does not provide for any method of determination for valuation of shares which 

results in floor price higher than determined price pursuant to SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

 

ii. Since the Proposed Preferential Issue is expected to result in a change in control or allotment of not more than 5% 

(five per cent) of the post issue fully diluted share capital of the Company, the Company is not required to obtain a 

valuation report from an independent registered valuer and consider the same for determining the price. Further, given 

that the equity shares of the Company have been listed for a period of more than 90 (ninety) trading days prior to the 

relevant date, the Company is not required to re-compute the issue price as per Regulation 164(3) the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations, and therefore, the Company is not required to submit the undertakings specified under Regulations 

163(1)(g) and 163(1)(h) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

 

 

h.   The price or price band at/within which the allotment is proposed:  

 

As stated in clause g. above, (i) the Investors Equity Shares are proposed to be issued at an issue price of INR 15/- 

(Indian Rupees Fifteen Only) per equity share and  

 

j.  Relevant Date with reference to which the price has been arrived at: 

 

The ‘relevant date’ for the purpose of determination of the floor price for issue of the Investor Equity Shares under 

the Investors Preferential Issue, as per provisions of Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and other applicable 

laws is Monday, August 12, 2024 (“Relevant Date”), being the date 30 (Thirty) days prior to the date on which the 

meeting viz. this Annual General Meeting of members of the Company is proposed to be held to consider and 

approve the Investors Preferential Issue.  

 

k.  The class or classes of persons to whom the allotment is proposed to be made:  

 

The equity shares are proposed to be issued and allotted to private investors comprising of (a) Individuals, and (b) 

Body Corporate, who shall hold the equity shares in the Company under ‘public shareholders’ category.  

 

The Equity Shares shall be issued and allotted to the Investors as detailed herein below:  

Sr. No. Name of Proposed 

Investor 

Maximum 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares to 

be alloted 

Maximum 

Amount to be 

paid for 

Equity 

Shares (INR) 

1 Pramod Kumar Sultania 100000 1500000 

2 ItCons E-Solutions Ltd 666666 9999990 

3 Deepak Kharwad HUF 350000 5250000 

4 Rajiv Jain 66666 999990 

5 Salhydrau Industries Private 

Limited 350000 5250000 

6 Kapish Jain 230000 3450000 

7 VS Finycore Pvt Ltd 400000 6000000 

8 Saurav Raidhani 200000 3000000 

9 Himanshu Jain 50000 750000 

10 Devang Shah 50000 750000 

11 Rajesh Kumar Chandan 75000 1125000 

12 Lakshay Gupta 75000 1125000 

13 Kusum Raheja 100000 1500000 
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l. Intention of Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel to subscribe to the offer: 

 

The promoters, directors and key managerial personnel of the Company does not intent to participate in the Investors 

Preferential Issue.  

 

m.  The proposed time within which the allotment shall be completed:  

 

The Investors Equity Shares shall be allotted by the Company to the Proposed Investors in dematerialized form within 

a period of 15 (fifteen) days from the date of passing of this special resolution by members of the Company, provided 

that, where the issue and allotment of the said Investors Equity Shares is pending on account of pendency of approval 

of any regulatory authority (including, but not limited to the Stock Exchange), the issue and allotment shall be 

completed within a period of 15 (fifteen) days from the date of receipt of last of such approvals. 

 

n.  The names of the proposed allottees, the identity of the natural persons who are the ultimate beneficial owners of the Investors 

Equity Shares proposed to be allotted and/ or who ultimately control the proposed allottees and the percentage of post 

preferential offer capital that may be held by them:  

 

 

Sr. 

No.  

Name of the 

Proposed 

Investors 

Ultimate 

Beneficial 

Owners 

(‘UBO’) 

Maximum 

Amount / Up to 

(INR) 

Pre-

preferential 

allotment 

Shareholding 

% 

Post- 

preferential 

allotment 

Shareholding* 

1. ItCons E-

Solutions Ltd 

 

Mr. Gaurav 

Mittal, Mrs. 

Swati Jain 

 

9999990  

0.00% 

0.48 

2. Deepak 

Kharwad HUF 

Mr. Deepak 

Kharwad 

5250000 0.00% 0.25 

3. Salhydrau 

Industries 

Private Limited 

Mr. Puneet 

Mehta 

Mr. Gurjeet 

Singh 

Walia 

5250000 0.00% 0.25 

4. VS Finycore 

Pvt Ltd 

Ms. Sapna 

Aggarwal 

Mr. Vipin 

Aggarwal  

6000000        0.00%   0.29 

*The post preferential percentage of shareholding has been calculated assuming that all the Warrants allotted will be converted 

into equity shares.  

 

o.  The change in control, if any, in the Company that would occur consequent to the preferential offer: 

 

The Investors Preferential Issue will not result into change in the control of the Company.  

 

p.  The number of persons to whom allotment on preferential basis have already been made during the year, in terms of 

number of securities as well as price:  

 

During the financial year viz. 2024-2025, the Company has not made any issue and allotment of securities on 

preferential basis.  

 

q.  The justification for the allotment proposed to be made for consideration other than cash together with valuation 

report of the registered valuer:  

 Total 2713332 40699980 
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Not applicable as the Investors Preferential Issue is proposed to be made for cash consideration.  

 

r.  The pre issue and post issue shareholding pattern of the Company:  

 

 

Sr. No.  

 

Category 

                Pre-Issue              * ** Post-Issue 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

% of 

Sharehold 

ing 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

% of 

Sharehold 

ing 

A. Promoter and 

Promoter 

Group 

Shareholders 

    

1. Indian     

a) Individuals/HUF 9,84,75,200 

 

   73.93% 9,84,75,200 

 

   70.28% 

b) Bodies 

Corporate 
      -      -        - - 

c) Others      -      -       - - 

 Sub-Total (A1) 9,84,75,200 

 

  73.93% 9,84,75,200 

 

  70.28% 

2. Foreign        - -        - - 

a) Bodies 

Corporate 
      - -       - - 

 Sub-Total (A2) -  -   

 Total 

Promoters and 

Promoters 

Group  

(A=A1+A2) 

9,84,75,200 73.93% 9,84,75,200 70.28% 

B. Non-

Promoters/ 

Public 

Shareholders 

    

1.  Institutional 

Investors 
      -       -       -       - 

2.  Non- 

Institutions 
      -       -       -       - 

a) Bodies 

Corporate 

   4,20,116    0.32   44,03,448  3.14% 

b) Directors and 

relatives 
      -       -       -       - 

c) Indian Public 3,30,24,635  24.79% 3,52,51,301 25.16% 

d) Others 

(Including 

NRIs) 

   12,80,049    0.96%    19,80,049   1.42% 

 Total Non 

Promoters/ 

Public 

Shareholdes (B) 

3,47,24,800  26.07% 4,16,34,798 29.72% 

 Grand 

Total(A+B)  
13,32,00,000 100.00% 14,01,09,998 100.00% 

 

 

* Assuming completion of the preferential allotment to Proposed Investors. 

** The post preferential percentage of shareholding has been calculated assuming that all   

     the Warrants allotted will be converted into equity shares.  
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s. The current and proposed status of the allottee post the preferential issues namely, promoter or non-promoter:  

 

Currently, the Proposed Investors who are holding equity shares in the Company are classified under ‘public 

shareholders’ category.  

 

t.  Lock-in Period:  

 

The Investors Equity Shares proposed to be issued to the Investors under the Investors Preferential Issue shall be 

subject to lock-in, in accordance with the provisions of Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

 

u.  Listing:  

 

The Investors Equity Shares proposed to be allotted to the Proposed Investors under the Investors Preferential Issue 

shall be listed and shall be admitted for trading on the main board of Stock Exchanges viz. BSE Limited, subject to 

requisite approval from the Stock Exchange.  

v.  Practicing Company Secretary’s Certificate 

 

As required under the provisions of Regulation 163(2) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, a certificate issued M/s. Vikas 

Verma & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, certifying, inter alia, that the Investors Preferential Issue is 

being made in accordance with the Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations shall be placed before the meeting of the 

members. The said certificate issued by M/s. Vikas Verma & Associates is also hosted on the website of the company 

at www.mauria.com.  

 

w.  Undertakings / Confirmations:  

 

1. The Company is eligible to undertake the preferential issue in accordance with the provisions of the Chapter V of 

the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

 

2. None of the promoters and/or directors of the Company are a fugitive economic offender as defined under the SEBI 

ICDR Regulations.  

 

3. Neither the Company nor any of its promoters and/or directors have been declared as wilful defaulter or a 

fraudulent borrower as defined under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Consequently, the disclosures required under 

Regulation 163(1)(i) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations are not applicable.  

 

4. Each of the Proposed Allottees has confirmed that it has not sold any equity shares of the Company during the 90 

trading days preceding the Relevant Date. 

 

5. As the equity shares of the Company are listed on recognized Stock Exchange for a period of more than 90 trading days 

prior to the Relevant Date, the Company is not required to re-compute the price. However, the Company shall re-

compute the price of the relevant securities to be allotted under the preferential allotment in terms of the provisions of 

SEBI ICDR Regulations if it is required to do so. If the amount payable on account of the re-computation of price is 

not paid within the time stipulated in SEBI ICDR Regulations, the relevant securities to be allotted under the 

preferential issue shall continue to be locked-in till the time such amount is paid by the respective Proposed Allottees.  

 

The approval of the members is being sought to enable the Board to issue and allot the Investors Equity Shares on a 

preferential basis, to the extent and in the manner as set out in the resolution and the explanatory statement. The Board of 

Directors of the Company believes that the proposed issue is in the best interest of the Company and its members.  

 

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are in any way concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution, except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, if 

any.  

 

The Board of Directors recommend passing of the special resolution at item no. 1 of the accompanying notice for the approval 

of the Members of the Company.  

 

http://www.mauria.com/
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Documents referred to in the notice/ explanatory statement will be available for inspection by the Members of the Company as 

per applicable law.  

 

Item 4:  Issuance of Warrants to the Proposed Allottees of the Company by way of preferential issue:  

 

The Company intends to raise funds from the Identified Proposed Allottees by issuance of the Warrants for the purpose of 

Working Capital Requirements. Therefore, the Board, in its meeting held on Monday, August 12, 2024, has approved the 

proposal for issuance of the Warrants to the Proposed Allottees under the Preferential Issuer as per terms stated in the 

aforesaid resolution, subject to, inter alia, approval of the members of the Company and shall be on the terms and conditions, 

as mentioned below:  

 

a. Pursuant to Regulation 160(c) of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (“ICDR 

Regulations”), the allotment of the Warrants (including the Equity Shares to be allotted on conversion of such 

Warrants) shall be made only in dematerialized form.  

 

b. In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 161 of ICDR Regulations, the ‘Relevant Date’ for the Warrant issue 

is determined to be Monday, August 12, 2024.  

 

c. In accordance with the applicable provisions of the ICDR Regulations an amount of INR INR 3.75/- ( Indian Rupees 

Three and Paisa Seventy Five Only) which is equivalent to 25% (twenty-five per cent) of the Warrant Issue Price shall 

be paid by the Proposed Allottees to the Company as upfront payment (“Warrant Subscription Price”).  

 

      d.   The Proposed Allottees shall be, subject to the ICDR Regulations and other applicable rules, regulations and laws, 

entitled to exercise the conversion rights attached to the Warrants in one or more tranches within a period of 18 

(Eighteen) months from the date of allotment of the Warrants by issuing a written notice to the Company specifying 

the number of Warrants proposed exchanged or converted with / into the Equity Shares of the Company and making 

payment at the rate of INR 11.25/- (Indian Rupees Eleven and Paisa Twenty Five  Only) being 75% (seventy five per 

cent) of the Warrant Issue Price (“Warrant Exercise Price”) in respect of each Warrant proposed to be converted by 

the Proposed Allottees.  

 

e. On receipt of such application from the Proposed Allottees, the Company shall without any further approval from the 

shareholders of the Company take necessary steps to issue and allot the corresponding number of Equity Shares to the 

Proposed Allottees. 

  

f.  If the entitlement against the Warrants to apply for the Equity Shares of the Company is not exercised by the Proposed 

Allottees within the aforesaid period of 18 (eighteen) months, the entitlement of the Proposed Allottees to apply for 

Equity Shares of the Company along with the rights attached thereto shall expire and any amount paid by the 

Proposed Allottees on such Warrants shall stand forfeited. 

 

 g.  The Equity Shares allotted on exercise of the Warrants shall only be in dematerialized form and shall rank pari passu 

with the existing Equity Shares of the Company including entitlement to voting powers and dividend.  

 

h.  The proposed issue and allotment of the Warrants and the exercise of option thereof will be governed by the 

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the Act, the ICDR Regulations, Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended, (“Listing 

Regulations”), applicable rules, notifications and circulars issued by the Reserve Bank of India and such other acts / 

rules / regulations as maybe applicable and subject to necessary approvals / consents, if any, from the statutory and / 

or regulatory authorities, as maybe applicable including the Securities and Exchange Board of India.  

 

This resolution is recommended to the members of the Company for their consideration and approval pursuant to the 

provisions of Sections 42 and 62 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 

2014 and Rule 13 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and any other applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

 

The disclosure required in terms of provisions of Rule 13(2)(d) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) 

Rules, 2014, Rule 14(1) of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of 

Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations are as follows: 
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a.  Particulars of the offer including date of passing of Board resolution: 

 

The Board, in its meeting held on Monday, August 12, 2024, has approved the proposal for the creation, offer, issuance 

and allotment of up to 41,96,666 (Forty One Lakhs Ninety Six Thousand Six hundred and Sixty Six Only) warrants, 

each convertible into, or exchangeable for, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of the Company having face value of 

INR 1/- (Indian Rupees One Only) (“Equity Share”) each (“Warrants”) at a price (including the Warrant Subscription 

Price and the Warrant Exercise Price) of INR 15/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen only) each payable in cash (“Warrant Issue 

Price”), aggregating up to INR 6,29,49,990 /- (Indian Rupees Six Crore Twenty Nine Lakhs Forty Nine Thousand 

Nine Hundred and Ninety only ) in one or more tranches.  

 

b. The Objects of the issue:  

The Company intends to utilize the proceeds raised through the Preferential Issue (“Issue Proceeds”) towards the Working 

Capital Requirements. 

   

c. Utilization of Issue Proceeds  

 

Given that the funds to be received against Warrants conversion will be in tranches and the quantum of funds required on 

different dates may vary, therefore, the broad range of intended use of the Issue Proceeds for the above Objects is set 

out hereinbelow:  

 

Sr. No.  Particulars  Total estimated 

amount to be utilized 

for each of the 

Objects (Rs. In 

Crores) 

Tentative timelines 

for utilization of 

Issue Proceeds from 

the date of receipt of 

funds 

1 Working capital 

requirements 

 

3,14,74,995 3 to 4 months 

2 Repayment of 

outstanding Secured 

Loans  

3,14,74,995 3 to 4 months 

 Total 6,29,49,990  

 

*Considering 100% conversion of Warrants into equity shares within the stipulated time.  

 

Given that the Preferential Issue is for convertible Warrants, the Issue Proceeds shall be received by the Company 

within 18 (eighteen) months from the date of allotment of the Warrants in terms of Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations, and as estimated by our management, the entire Issue Proceeds would be utilized for the all the 

aforementioned Objects, in phases, as per the Company’s business requirements and availability of Issue Proceeds, 

within 3 (Three) to 4 (Four) months from the date of receipt of funds for the Warrants (as set out herein).  

 

In terms of the BSE Circular No. 20221213-47 dated December 13, 2022, the amount specified for the aforementioned 

Objects may deviate +/- 10% depending upon the future circumstances, given that the Objects are based on 

management estimates and other commercial and technical factors. Accordingly, the same is dependent on a variety of 

factors such as financial, market and sectoral conditions, business performance and strategy, competition and other 

external factors, which may not be within the control of the Company and may result in modifications to the proposed 

schedule for utilization of the Issue Proceeds at the discretion of the Board, subject to compliance with applicable 

laws.  

 

If the Issue Proceeds are not utilized (in full or in part) for the Objects during the period stated above due to any such 

factors, the remaining Issue Proceeds shall be utilized in subsequent periods in such manner as may be determined by 

the Board, in accordance with applicable laws.  

 

This may entail rescheduling and revising the planned expenditure and funding requirements and increasing or 

decreasing the expenditure for a particular purpose from the planned expenditure as may be determined by the Board, 

subject to compliance with applicable laws.  
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d. Interim Use of Issue Proceeds 

 

Our Company, in accordance with the policies formulated by our Board from time to time, will have flexibility to deploy 

the Issue Proceeds. Pending complete utilization of the Issue Proceeds for the Objects described above, our Company 

intends to, inter alia, invest the Issue Proceeds in money market instruments including money market mutual funds, 

deposits in scheduled commercial banks, securities issued by government of India or any other investments as 

permitted under applicable laws. 

 

e.  Monitoring of utilisation of funds  

 

i. Given that the issue size exceeds doesn’t Rs. 100 Crore (Indian Rupees One Hundred Crore), in terms of 

Regulation 162A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Company doesn’t require to appoint any credit rating 

Agency, a SEBI registered Credit Rating Agency as the monitoring agency to monitor the use of the proceeds 

of the Preferential Issue (“Monitoring Agency”).  

 

f. Kinds of securities offered, the total number of shares or other securities to be issued, the price at which 

security is being offered and amount which the Company intends to raise by way of such securities:  

 

The Company propose to issue in one or more tranches up to 27,13,332 (Twenty Seven Lakhs Thirteen thousand Three 

Hundred And Thirty Two) warrants, each convertible into, or exchangeable for, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of 

the Company having face value of INR 1/- (Indian Rupees One Only) (“Equity Share”) each (“Warrants”) at a price 

(including the Warrant Subscription Price and the Warrant Exercise Price) of INR 15/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen only) 

each payable in cash (“Warrant Issue Price”), in one or more tranches which is not less than the floor price determined 

in accordance with Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations for an aggregate consideration of up to 6,29,49,990/- 

(Indian Rupees Six Crore Twenty Nine Lakhs Forty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred And Ninety only)  

 

        g.  Basis on which the price has been arrived at along with report of the registered valuer:  

 

i.    In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the floor price at which the Warrants can be issued is INR 15/- 

(Indian Rupees Fifteen Only) respectively, as per the pricing formula prescribed under the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations for the preferential Issue and is Highest of the following: 

 

a.  90 (ninety) trading days volume weighted average price (VWAP) of the    equity shares of the 

Company preceding the Relevant Date: i.e. INR 12.72/- (Indian Rupees Twelve and Paisa Seventy 

Two Only) per equity share;  

 

b.  10 (ten) trading days volume weighted average price (VWAP) of the equity shares of the Company 

preceding the Relevant Date: i.e. INR 14.25/- (Indian Rupees Fourteen and Paisa Twenty-Five Only) 

per equity share. 

 

c.  Floor price determined in accordance with the provisions of the articles of association of the 

Company. However, the articles of association of the Company does not provide for any method of 

determination for valuation of shares which results in floor price higher than determined price 

pursuant to SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

 

ii. Since the Proposed Preferential Issue is expected to result in a change in control or allotment of not 

more than 5% (five per cent) of the post issue fully diluted share capital of the Company, the 

Company is not required to obtain a valuation report from an independent registered valuer and 

consider the same for determining the price. Further, given that the equity shares of the Company 

have been listed for a period of more than 90 (ninety) trading days prior to the relevant date, the 

Company is not required to re-compute the issue price as per Regulation 164(3) the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations, and therefore, the Company is not required to submit the undertakings specified under 

Regulations 163(1)(g) and 163(1)(h) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

 

h. The price or price band at/within which the allotment is proposed:  
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As stated in clause g. above, the Warrants are proposed to be issued at an issue price of INR 15/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen 

Only) per Warrant. 

 

i. Relevant Date with reference to which the price has been arrived at:  

 

The ‘relevant date’ for the purpose of determination of the floor price for issue of the Warrants as per provisions of 

Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and other applicable laws is Monday, August 12, 2024 (“Relevant Date”), 

being the date 30 (Thirty) days prior to the date on which the meeting viz. this Annual General Meeting of members of 

the Company is proposed to be held to consider and approve the Proposed Allottees. 

 

j. The class or classes of persons to whom the allotment is proposed to be made:  

 

The equity shares are proposed to be issued and allotted to private investors comprising of Individuals and  

Body Corporate, who shall hold the equity shares in the Company under the Non-Promoter Public 

Category. The Warrants shall be issued and allotted to the Proposed Allottees as detailed herein below:  

 

Sr. 

No 

Name Number 

of 

Warrants 

to be 

Alloted 

Amount to 

be paid for 

Warrants 

(INR) 

Number 

of Shares 

to be 

Issued 

assuming 

full 

conversio

n of 

Warrants 

1 SBJ Management Services 

Pvt Ltd 1500000 22500000 1500000 

2 Pramod Kumar Sultania 100000 1500000 100000 

3 Yoshi Envirotech Private 

Limited 666666 9999990 666666 

4 Babulal Kharwad HUF 350000 5250000 350000 

5 Kapish Jain 230000 3450000 230000 

6 VS Finycore Pvt Ltd 400000 6000000 400000 

7 Harsh Kumar Goyal 100000 1500000 100000 

8 Saurav Raidhani 300000 4500000 300000 

9 Himanshu Jain 100000 1500000 100000 

10 Devang Shah 100000 1500000 100000 

11 Rajesh Kumar Chandan 125000 1875000 125000 

12 Lakshay Gupta 125000 1875000 125000 

13 Kusum Raheja 100000 1500000 100000 

 Total 4196666 62949990 4196666 

 

k. Intention of Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel to subscribe to the offer:  

 

The promoters and promoter group doesn’t intent to participate in the Preferential Issue.  

 

l. The proposed time within which the allotment shall be completed: 

 

 The Warrants shall be allotted by the Company to the Identified Proposed Allottees in dematerialized form within a 

period of 15 (fifteen) days from the date of passing of this special resolution by members of the Company, provided 

that, where the issue and allotment of the said Warrants to the Identified Proposed Allottees is pending on account of 

pendency of approval of any regulatory authority (including, but not limited to the Stock Exchange), the issue and 

allotment shall be completed within a period of 15 (fifteen) days from the date of receipt of last of such approvals.  

 

   n.  The names of the proposed allottees, the identity of the natural persons who are the ultimate beneficial owners 

of the Warrants proposed to be allotted and/ or who ultimately control the proposed allottees and the 

percentage of post preferential offer capital that may be held by them:  
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S.No. Name of 

Proposed 

Investor  

Ultimate 

Benifical 

Owners 

(UBO’)  

Maximum 

Amount / Up 

to (INR) 

Pre-

preferenti al 

allotment 

Sharehold 

ing % 

Post-

Preferenti al 

allotment 

Sharehold 

ing % * ** 

1. SBJ 

Management 

Services 

Private 

Limited 

Bhawana 

Bhatia 

    2,25,00,000  0.00% 1.07 

2. Yoshi 

Envirotech 

Private 

Limited 

Ms. 

Kanishka 

Gupta  

99,99,990  0.00% 0.48 

3. Babulal 

Kharwad 

HUF 

Mr. 

Babulal 

Kharwad 

52,50,000  0.00% 0.25 

4. VS Finycore 

Pvt Ltd 

 

Ms. Sapna 

Aggarwal 

Mr. Vipin 

Aggarwal 

60,00,000 

 

0.00% 0.29 

 

* Assuming competition of the preferential allotment to proposed Investors. 

** The post preferential percentage of shareholding has been calculated assuming that all the Warrants allotted will be 

converted into equity shares.  

 

o. The change in control, if any, in the Company that would occur consequent to the preferential offer: 

  

The Promoter Preferential Issue will not result into change in the control of the Company.  

 

p.  The number of persons to whom allotment on preferential basis have already been    

made during the year, in terms of number of securities as well as price: 

 

During the financial year viz. 2024-2025, the Company has not made any issue and allotment of any securities on 

preferential basis.  

 

q. The justification for the allotment proposed to be made for consideration other than cash together with 

valuation report of the registered valuer:  

 

Not applicable as Non- Promoter Preferential Issue is proposed to be made for cash consideration.  

 

r. The pre-issue and post issue shareholding pattern of the Company:  

 

The pre-issue and the post-issue shareholding pattern of the Company (considering full allotment of equity shares to be 

issued on preferential basis as per this Notice) is mentioned hereinbelow: 

 

 

Sr. No.  

 

Category 

                Pre-Issue              * @ Post-Issue 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

% of 

Sharehold 

ing 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

% of 

Sharehold 

ing 

A. Promoter and 

Promoter 

Group 

Shareholders 

    

1. Indian     

a) Individuals/HUF 9,84,75,200    73.93% 9,84,75,200    70.28% 
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b) Bodies 

Corporate 
      -      -        - - 

c) Others      -      -       - - 

 Sub-Total (A1) 9,84,75,200 

 

  73.93% 9,84,75,200 

 

  70.28% 

2. Foreign        - -        - - 

a) Bodies 

Corporate 
      - -       - - 

 Sub-Total (A2) -  -   

 Total 

Promoters and 

Promoters 

Group  

(A=A1+A2) 

9,84,75,200 73.93% 9,84,75,200 70.28% 

B. Non-

Promoters/ 

Public 

Shareholders 

    

1.  Institutional 

Investors 
      -       -       -       - 

2.  Non- 

Institutions 
      -       -       -       - 

a) Bodies 

Corporate 

   4,20,116    0.32   44,03,448  3.14% 

b) Directors and 

relatives 
      -       -       -       - 

c) Indian Public 3,30,24,635  24.79% 3,52,51,301 25.16% 

d) Others 

(Including 

NRIs) 

   12,80,049    0.96%    19,80,049   1.42% 

 Total Non 

Promoters/ 

Public 

Shareholdes (B) 

3,47,24,800  26.07% 4,16,34,798 29.72% 

 Grand 

Total(A+B)  
13,32,00,000 100.00% 14,01,09,998 100.00% 

 

# Assuming completion of the preferential allotment to Proposed Investors and Identified Promoters  

@ The post preferential percentage of shareholding has been calculated assuming that all the Warrants allotted will be 

converted into equity shares. 

 

s. The current and proposed status of the allottee post the preferential issues namely, promoter or non-promoter:  

 

As mentioned above, the Proposed Allottees are forming part of Non-Promoter Public Category of the Company and such 

status will continue to remain the same post the Preferential Issue.  

 

t. Lock-in Period:  

 

The pre-preferential allotment shareholding of the Identified Proposed Allottees, if any, in the Company and Warrants 

allotted in terms of this resolution and the resultant Equity Shares arising on exercise of rights attached to such 

Warrants shall be subject to lock-in as per the provisions of the ICDR Regulations.  

 

u. Listing:  

 

Post conversion of Warrants into Equity Shares to be allotted to the Identified Proposed Allottees shall be listed and shall 

be admitted for trading on the main board of Stock Exchanges BSE Limited, subject to requisite approval from the 
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Stock Exchange.  

 

v. Practicing Company Secretary’s Certificate 

 

As required under the provisions of Regulation 163(2) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, a certificate issued by, M/s. Vikas 

Verma & Associates certifying, inter alia, that the Preferential Issue is being made in accordance with the Chapter V 

of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, shall be placed before the meeting of the members. The said certificate issued by M/s. 

Vikas Verma & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, is also hosted on the website of the Company at 

www.mauria.com. 

 

w.  Undertakings / Confirmations: 

 

1. The Company is eligible to undertake the preferential issue in accordance with the provisions of the Chapter V of 

the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

 

2. None of the promoters and/or directors of the Company are a fugitive economic offender as defined under the 

SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

 

3. Neither the Company nor any of its promoters and/or directors have been declared as wilful defaulter or a 

fraudulent borrower as defined under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

 

Consequently, the disclosures required under Regulation 163(1)(i) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations are not applicable.  

 

4. Each of Identified Proposed Allottees has confirmed that it has not sold any equity shares of the Company during 

the 90 trading days preceding the Relevant Date.  

 

5. As the equity shares of the Company are listed on recognized Stock Exchange for a period of more than 90 trading 

days prior to the Relevant Date, the Company is not required to re-compute the price. However, the Company shall 

re-compute the price of the relevant securities to be allotted under the preferential allotment in terms of the provisions 

of SEBI ICDR Regulations if it is required to do so. If the amount payable on account of the re-computation of price 

is not paid within the time stipulated in SEBI ICDR Regulations, the relevant securities to be allotted under the 

preferential issue shall continue to be locked-in till the time such amount is paid by the respective allottees. 

 

The approval of the members is being sought to enable the Board to issue and allot the Warrants on a preferential basis, to the 

extent and in the manner as set out in the resolution and the explanatory statement. The Board of Directors of the Company 

believes that the proposed issue is in the best interest of the Company and its members. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are not in any way concerned or interested, financially or 

otherwise, in the proposed resolution, except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, if any. 

 

The Board of Directors recommend passing of the special resolution at item no. 2 of the accompanying notice for the 

approval of the Members of the Company. 

 

 Documents referred to in the notice/ explanatory statement will be available for inspection by the Members of the Company as per 

applicable law. 

Item No. 05 

Related Party Transactions-24-25 
 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’), vide its notification dated 9th November, 2021, has notified SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 (‘Amendments’) introducing 
amendments to the provisions pertaining to the Related Party Transactions under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and  
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’). The aforesaid Amendments inter -alia included 
replacing of threshold i.e. 10% (ten per cent) of the listed entity’s consolidated turnover, for determination of Material 
Related Party Transactions requiring Shareholders’ prior approval with the threshold of lower of Rs. 1,000 crores 
(Rupees one thousand crores) or 10% (ten per cent) of the annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the 
last audited financial statements of the listed entity, with effect from 1st April, 2022.Under the Listing Regulations, in 

http://www.mauria.com/
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addition to the approval and reporting for transactions by the Company with its own Related Party(ies), the scope 
extends to transactions by the Company with Related Party(ies) of any subsidiary(ies) of the Company or transactions 
by a subsidiary(ies) of the Company with its own Related Party(ies) or Related Party(ies) of the Company or Related 
Party(ies) of any subsidiary(ies) of the Company. As per Regulation 23(4) of the Listing Regulations, all Material 
Related Party Transactions shall require prior approval of the shareholders, even if the transactions are in the ordinary 
course of business and at an arm’s length basis. Given the nature of the Company the Company works closely with its 
subsidiary and group Companies to achieve its business objectives and enters into various operational transactions 
with its related parties, from time to time, in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. Further, the 
Members of the Company at the previous AGM had approved Related Party Transactions of the Company with certain 
Related. However, the estimated value of the contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ agreement(s)/ transaction(s) of the 
Company with the aforesaid Related Parties is anticipated to exceed the aforesaid monetary limit approved by the 
Members at the 43rd  AGM. Members may please note that the Company, its Subsidiary and Group Company have been 
undertaking such transactions of similar nature with related parties in the past financial years, in the ordinary course 
of business and on arm's length after obtaining requisite approvals, including from the Audit Committee of the 
Company as per the requirements of the applicable law. The maximum annual value of the proposed transactions with 
the related parties is estimated based on the Company’s current transactions with them and future business 
projections. The Board of Directors of your company has approved this item in the Board Meeting and recommends the 
Resolution as set out in the Notice for the approval of members of the Company as an Ordinary Resolution. Also, it is to 
note that all entities falling under the related parties shall not vote to approve the transaction as set out at Item no. 05, 
irrespective whether the entity is party to the said transaction or not. Except Promoter Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company and their relatives, Members are hereby informed that pursuant to the second proviso of section 

188(1) of Companies Act, 2013, no member of the company shall vote on such Ordinary resolution to approve any contract or 

arrangement which may be entered into by the company, if such member is a related party. 

 

The Board of Directors of your company has approved this item in the Board Meeting held on 20
th
 August 2024 and recommends 

the Resolution as set out in the Notice for the approval of members of the Company as an Ordinary Resolution. 

 

Also, it is to note that all entities falling under the related parties shall not vote to approve the transaction as set out at Item no. 05, 

irrespective whether the entity is party to the said transaction or not. 

 

Except Promoter Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, no other Director or any other 

person is concerned or interested in the Resolution. 

 

Item No.06  

Remuneration of the Cost Auditors 

 

 

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and remuneration of the Cost 

Auditors for conducting the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2024 as per the 

following details: 

 
Sl.No. Name of the Cost Auditor Industry Amount of Fee 

1. M/s Jai Prakash &Co. Steel(LPG Cylinder)  Rs. 55000 

 

2. M/s Jai Prakash &Co. Machinery & Mechanical 

Appliances (Regulators & Valves) 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014, the 

remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company. 

 

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 05 under special business 

of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31
st
 March, 2024. 
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None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 

financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No.  06 under Special Business of the Notice. 

 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 06 under Special Business for approval by the shareholders. 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 

Sd/- 

(DIVYA AGARWAL)   

COMPANY SECRETARY 

ROOM NO. 107, 1
ST

FLOOR, 

ANAND JYOTI BUILDING, 

41, NETAJI SUBHAS ROAD, 

KOLKATA-700001-(WEST BENGAL) 

CIN: L51909WB1980PLC033010 

Date: August 20, 2024 



44th 
MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 
 



 MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 44
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DIRECTORS REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 

 
TO THE MEMBERS 

 

Your Directors have the pleasure in presenting the 44
th
 Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts of the company 

for the year ended 31
st
 March, 2024. 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

        

The Financial Results for the year ended 31
st
 March, 2024 are as under:                                                           

                                                                                                                                                                                                    

Rs. in Lacs 

 

PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

 

The Gross revenues has touched Rs. 34308.42 Lacs compared to Rs. 25237.96 Lacs previous year which is 35.94 % 

higher than last year. Company has  come out of  the red with after -tax standalone profit of  at Rs. 1363.02 Lakhs for 

2023-24 closed on March 31, 2024 compared to  (291.07)Lakhs previous year. Standalone  Comprehensive Income for 

the period stands at Rs. 1666.08 Lakhs compared to Rs. (938.47) Lakhs last year. 

 

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

relevant rules thereunder, with effect from April 1, 2017 and accordingly financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with IND AS notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendments) Rules, 2016. 

 

FUTUREOUTLOOK (STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS) 

 

The good news  being that the world has finally came out of the shadows of the COVID-19 pandemic and of Central 

Government continuing in the office for its third term, however at the same time, with the Ukraine & middle-east war  still 

PARTICULARS 2023-24  2022-23 2022-23 

 Standalone Consolidated Standalone Consolidated 

Revenue From Operations 33509.63 33509.63 23169.00  23169.00  23169.00 

Other Income 798.79 798.79 2068.96  2068.96  2 

Total Income 34308.42 34308.42 25237.96            25237.96 25237.96 

Cost of materials consumed 19075.71 19075.71 13409.59          13409.59 

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 184.44 184.44 50.27                50.27 50.27 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-

Trade and Work-in-progress 

(1143.33) (1143.33) (1045.34)         (1045.34) (1045.34) 

Employee benefits expense 1370.21 1370.21 1163.71  1163.71 1163.71 

Finance Cost 1120.73 1120.73 2123.83  2123.83 2123.83 

Depreciation and amortization expense 324.13 324.13 301.33       301.33 301.33 

Other expenses 12013.51 12013.39 9525.63            9525.69 

Total Expenses 32945.40 32945.28 25529.03           25529.08 25529.08 

Profit(loss) before exceptional items and tax 1363.02 1363.14 (291.07)            (291.12) 

Exceptional items - - -  

Profit/(loss) before tax  1363.02 1363.14 (291.07)             (291.12) 

Tax Expenses     

                     (1) Current tax - - - - 

                     (2) Deferred tax -310.86 -310.86 628.12  628.08 628.08 

Profit/(loss) for the year after tax 1673.88 1674.00 (919.19)               (919.20) 

Other Comprehensive Income (7.80) (7.80) (19.28)   (19.28) (19.28) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 1666.08 1666.20 (938.46)              (938.47) 

Earnings Per Share (Basic / Diluted) (`) 1.26 1.26 (0.69)        (0.69) ((0.69) 
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continuing, pose  serious challenge that the world faces today. The war has stoked an increase in inflation leading to 

increase in interest rates across the world as inflation has reached 40 year high in developed countries. The interest rate 

hikes are threating a looming recession in the world. However silver lining  is that Indian economy is resilient & 

performing vibrantly. With the sound economic policies undertaken by the Central Government, India is on the path to 

become third largest economy in the world.    

 

The Board has been making continuous efforts to solve the challenges being faced by the company.  

 

As the members are aware the company was classified as a NPA by the working capital bankers due to default in 

repayment & servicing of its debt. 

 
The company has  reached a settlement plan with its largest lender of working capital, and has been able to finalise a 4.5yrs  payment 

plan ending in December 2026. Further, during the year company was successful in  reaching settlement plans with almost all 

remaining lenders including Kotak Mahindra Bank. 

  

The manufacturing business of the company is slowly and steadily picking-up, however there are severe challenges being 

faced due to shortages in availability of raw material and logistical reasons.  

 

Your directors are optimistic of better performance in turnover and profits during 2024-25 compared to previous year. 

During the first quarter of financial year  2024-25 ended June 30, 2024 company has reported a  profits after tax at Rs. 

399.14 lakhs .   

 

DIVIDEND 

 

In order to consolidate the financial position of the company your directors do not recommend payment of any dividend 

for the year ended 31 March 2024. 

 

During the year 2023-24 the Board of directors did not recommend payment of interim-dividend. 

 

RESERVES: 

 

General reserve. transition reserve and retained earnings compared to previous year are follows: 

  

                                                                  Rs. Lakhs 
(i). General reserve 

 
2023-24 2022-23 

 Opening balance 

 
                      93.85                        93.85  

 Closing balance 

 
                      93.85                        93.85  

(ii). Transition reserve 

    Opening balance 

 

                  
1,377.55  

                  
1,377.55  

 Closing balance 

 

                  
1,377.55  

                  
1,377.55  

(iii). Retained earnings 

    Opening balance 

 

                 
(1,027.74) 

                   
(123.40) 

 Add: (Loss) for the year Profit/ 

 

                  
1,673.88  

                   
(919.18) 

 Add: Transferred from accumulated other 
comprehensive income 

 

                           
-       14.84  

 Closing balance 

 
                    646.15  

                 
(1,027.74) 
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SHARE CAPITAL 

 

The paid-up equity share capital as on 31
st
March 2024 stands at 1332.00 Lacs. There was no public issue, rights issue, 

bonus issue or preferential issue, etc. during the year. In-principal approval of the BSE could not be obtained on the 

proposed preferential issue during 2023-24. Further, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights, 

sweat equity shares, nor has it granted any stock options. 

 

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

 

Additions of Property, Plant & Equipment (gross) during the year under review amounted to Rs. 898.88 Lakhs and net 

carrying value of Property Plant & Equipment stood at Rs. 5247.84 Lakhs as at 31
st
 March, 2024. 

 

FIXED DEPOSITS 

 

The company has not accepted any deposits from public during the financial year under review and as such there were no 

fixed deposits outstanding as on 31
st
 March, 2024. 

 

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
 

During the year  Company has made  investment in Bihariji Properties Private Limited (BPPL) AND Bihariji Highrise Private 

Limited (BHPL)  on 30th March, 2024 pursuant to which they have become subsidiaries of the Company. Both the companies 

are engaged in the real estate/renting business with owned or leased property 

 

As on 31
st
 March 2024 company has three Subsidiaries namely: 1. M/s Strawberry Star India Pvt. Ltd. (SSIPL) as reported last 

year; 2. Bihariji Properties Private Limited (BPPL) and 3. Bihariji Highrise Private Limited (BHPL). None of the subsidiary 

fall amongst related parties of the Company 

 

The Company has no joint venture or associate. 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

 

As on March 31, 2024 there were no outstanding loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 

Act.  The details of the Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are 

given in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

A detailed report on contracts and arrangements made during the year 2023-24, transactions being in the ordinary course 

of business and at arm’s length have been reported and annexed hereto in this report in the prescribed Form AOC-2 read 

with note no. 13 of the Financial Statements. 

 

The terms & conditions of the above mentioned transactions are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The 

closing balances of such related parties, wherever outstanding, are not overdue. 

 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

 

Fourteen meetings of the Board of directors were held during the year 2023-24. For details of the meetings of the Board, 

please refer to the corporate governance report, which forms part of this report. 

 

BOARD EVALUATION 

 

The Board of directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board committees and individual 

directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013( “the Act”) and the corporate governance requirements as 

prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) under Regulation 17(10) of  Listing Obligations & 
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Disclosure Requirements, Regulations, 2015.The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking 

inputs from all the directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of 

Board processes, information and functioning, etc. The performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board after 

seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, 

effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) 

reviewed the performance of the individual directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual 

director to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and 

constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc.  

 

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

The Company keeps its Directors informed of the activities of the Company, its management and operations and provides 

an overall industry perspective as well as issues being faced by the industry. The details of various familiarization 

programme provided to the Directors of the Company is available on the Company’s website www.mauria.com. 

 

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF 

MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

 

Disclosure pursuant to Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014 has 

been made for the FY 2023-24 in the prescribed Format and forms part of the Directors’ Report as an Annexure. 

 

 

  

 

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

In terms of requirements under Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013 and the Listing Regulations, 2015, a separate 

meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 04/01/2024 

 

The Independent Directors at the meeting reviewed the following:- 

 

 Performance of non independent Directors and board as a whole. 

 Performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of executive Directors and 

non-executive Directors.  

 Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and 

the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.  
 

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES 

 

With effect from Tuesday July 14, 2015, the scrip of your company got listed on BSE Limited (BSE) under the Direct 

Listing Route of BSE with Scrip Code 539219 (bearing ISIN: INE150D01027). 

 

Accordingly, as on date, the shares of your Company are listed on BSE as well as Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE). 
 

Market price data - High, Low during the each month in last financial year 2023-24 has been given under Corporate 

Governance Report. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  

 

A detailed Report on Corporate Governance is given in “Annexure-A” to this report. In terms of Part E of Schedule V of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015 (Listing Regulations, 2015), the Compliance 

Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary certifying compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance, as 

stipulated in Regulation 16 to 27 of Listing Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchange(s) where the shares of the 

company are listed, is also enclosed. 

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

http://www.mauria.com/
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Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, 

confirm that: 

i. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and there 

are no material departures; 

ii. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the 

end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period; 

iii. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 

fraud and other irregularities; 

iv. they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

v. they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal financial 

controls are adequate and operating effectively; 

vi. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 

such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

● No fraud against the company  has been reported by the Auditors as well as by Audit Committee or noticed by 

the Board of Directors  

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM 

` 

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the 

Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and external consultants and the reviews 

performed by management and the relevant Board committees, including the audit committee, the board is of the opinion 

that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2023-24. 

 

DIRECTORS&KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL/ INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS DECLARATION 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(7) of the Act, all Independent directors have submitted declarations that each of 

them meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI 

Regulations, 2015. 

 

There has been following changes in the composition of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel during the 

year 2023-24: 

 

 Smt. Sujata Kumar (DIN:01310030) who has resigned wef February 26, 2024, 

 Shri Atul Kumar appointed as Director (DIN: 00060233) wef February 26, 2024 

 Shri Manohar Menghraj Punjabi(DIN: 10213816) appointed as Director wef June 26, 2023 

 

As on March 31, 2024, the composition of Board of Directors was as follows: 

 

S.No. Name DIN Designation 

1 Shri Navneet Kumar Sureka 00054929 Managing Director (Executive-Promoter) 

2. Smt. Deepa Sureka 00060284 Whole-time Woman Director (Executive, Promoter) 

3. Smt. Veena Sureka 00060415 Director (Non-Executive, Non-Independent) 

4. Shri Birendra Kumar 08666368 Director (Non-Executive Independent)  

5. Shri Manohar Menghraj Punjabi 10213816 Director (Non-Executive Independent) 

6. Shri Atul Kumar 00060233 Director (Non-Executive Independent) 

 

 

After March 31, 2024 till the date of signing of Annual Report, Smt. Deepa Sureka (DIN:00060284) Whole-time Woman 

Director (Executive, Promoter) resigned wef April 26, 2024 and Smt. Prem Lata Sureka,(DIN:00060247)  joined the 

Board wef 26/06/2024 as Whole-time Woman Director (Executive, Promoter).   
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Also, during the financial year 2023-24 the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or 

transactions with the Company. 

 

As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Sh. Navneet Kumar Sureka (DIN: 00054929) retires by rotation and being 

eligible has offered himself for re-appointment in the 44th  Annual General Meeting. 

 

There has been no change in the Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) during the year under review.  

 

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS 

 

The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in Section 178(3) of the 

Act has been disclosed in the corporate governance report, which forms part of the directors’ report. 

 

INSIDER TRADING POLICY 

 

The Company’s policy on insider trading has been uploaded on the web-site of the company www.mauria.com and all 

necessary steps have been taken to comply with the said policy.  

 

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 

Your directors have established a Vigil (Whistle Blower) Mechanism and formulated a Policy in order to provide a 

framework for responsible and secure whistle blowing/vigil mechanism. The Vigil (Whistle Blower) Mechanism aims to 

provide a channel to the Directors and employees to report genuine concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected 

fraud or violation of the codes of conduct or ethic policy. This mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against 

victimization of Directors and employees who avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairman 

of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. 

Email address of the chairman of the Audit committee Sh. Atul Kumar is atul@commediait.com. 

 

We affirm that no personnel has been denied access to the audit committee. 

 

During the year 2023-2024, no such report were made to the Chairman of Audit Committee 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

 

The Company has developed and implemented the Risk Management Policy and the Audit Committee of the Company 

reviews the same periodically. The Company recognizes that risk is an integral and unavoidable component of business 

and hence is committed to managing the risk in a proactive and effective manner. The Company’s Management systems, 

organizational structures, processes, standards, code of conduct and behaviors together form the Risk Management 

System of the Company and are managed accordingly. 

 

The common risks faced by the Company include Raw Material Procurement Risk, Environment & Safety Risk, Market 

Risk, Technology risk, Business Operational Risk, Reputation Risk, Regulatory & Compliance Risk, Human Resource 

Risk Working Capital and Business continuity Risk. Your Company has well defined processes and systems to identify, 

assess & mitigate the key risks. A platform for exception reporting of violations is in place which is reviewed regularly 

and remedial measures are being undertaken immediately. 

 

COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE  

 

Your directors, the Management and all of the employees subscribe to the philosophy of compassionate care. We believe 

and act on the ethos of generosity and compassionate care, characterized by willingness to build a society that works for 

everyone. This is the cornerstone of our CSR policy. The web-link of Company’s CSR Policy alongwith Projects 

approved for making expenditure is enumerated at https://mauria.com/policies/. There has been no change in policy as 

well as the project approved for the FY 2023-24. 

http://www.mauria.com/
mailto:atul@commediait.com
https://mauria.com/policies/
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. 

 

Company continues to undertake the CSR work during the year under review on a voluntary basis over and above what 

has been prescribed under CSR guidelines. The CSR activities are overseen by the Managing Director, who is chairman of 

CSR committee on a regular basis. The Annual report on the CSR Activities forming part of this Report is annexed hereto. 

 

Your directors have constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprising of Shri Navneet Kumar 

Sureka as Chairman, and Smt. Veena Aggarwal and Shri Atul Kumar as members. 

 

The said committee has formulated and recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR 

Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring and implementing of the CSR Policy and 

recommending the amount to be spent on the CSR activities.    

 

During the year 2023-2024, the CSR Committee met once on 12/10/2023 and provided status updates to the Board of 

directors of the company. 

 

Your company’s investment in CSR activities for the year 2023-24 was Rs. 50.41 Lakhs compared to  Rs. 44.48 Lakhs 

during previous year, which is above the requirement of minimum 2 % of the average profits of the company for the last 

three years. 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

The constitution of the Audit Committee is in accordance with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 

2013(here-in-after known the “Act”) and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, 2015.  During the year Smt. Sujata 

Kumar, chairperson of the Audit Committee resigned   and Shri Atul Kumar a director & member took over as the new 

Chairperson of the audit-committee wef 26/02/2024.  

 

As on March 31, 2024 Audit committee comprises of  following directors: 

 

Sl. 

No 

Name of Members Category Designation 

1 Shri Atul Kumar Non-Executive-Independent  Chairperson wef 26.02.2024 

2 Shri Navneet Kumar Sureka Executive Member 

3 Sh Birendra Kumar  Non-Executive-Independent Member 

  

 

The details of terms of reference of the audit committee, number and dates of meetings held, attendance of Directors 

during the year 2023-24 are given in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

The primary objective of the Committee is to monitor and provide effective supervision of the Management’s financial 

reporting process to ensure accurate and timely disclosures,  

 

● All the recommendations of Audit Committee has been accepted by the Board of Directors during the reportable 

year. 

 

 

 

 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 

During the year Chairperson of this committee namely Smt. Sujata Kumar resigned wef 26.02.2024. Consequent thereto a 

non-executive directors Shri Atul Kumar was nominated on this committee as the new chairperson wef 26/02/2024.    

 

As on March 31, 2024 this committee consisted of following directors: 
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Sl. No Name of Members Category Designation 

1 Shri Atul Kumar Non-Executive-Independent  Chairperson wef 26.02.2024 

2 Smt. Veena Sureka Non-Executive-Non-Independent Member 

3 Sh. Birendra Kumar Non-Executive-Independent Member 

 

The said committee has been entrusted with the responsibility of formulating and recommending to the Board a policy 

relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; formulation of criteria for 

evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board, devising a policy on Board diversity and identifying persons who are 

qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management and to recommend to the board their 

appointment and removal.  

 

During the year 2023-2024, Nomination & Remuneration committee met twice. 

 

.The details of number and dates of meetings held, attendance of NRC during the year are given in the Corporate 

Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

● The web-link of  policy relating to criterion for making payment to Non-executive directors is https://mauria.com/wp-

content/uploads/2018/01/3-MUL-Criterion-for-making-payment-to-Non-EXD-1.pdf  

 

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 

During the year Chairperson of this committee namely Smt. Sujata Kumar resigned wef 26/02/2024. Consequent thereto a 

non-executive directors Shri Atul Kumar was nominated on this committee as the new chairperson wef 26/02/2024.    

  

As on March 31, 2024 this committee consisted of following directors: 

 

Sl. 

No 

Name of Members Category Designation 

1 Smt. Sujata Kumar* Non-Executive-Independent  Ex-Chairperson 

2 Shri Atul Kumar** Non-Executive-Independent Chairperson 

2 Smt. Veena Aggarwal Non-Executive-Independent Member 

3 Sh Birendra Kumar  Non-Executive-Independent Member 

 

*Resigned wef 26.02.2024   

 **Appointed wef 26.02.202; 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee shall consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of the company.  

 

During the year 2023-24, Stakeholders Committee met Four-times and provided status updates to the Board of directors of 

the company which is elaborated under corporate governance report forming part of this report. 

 

WEBLINK OF THE COMPANY:  

 

The web address of the company is https://mauria.com/financials/  where the annual returns referred to in sub-section (3) 

of section 92 has been placed. 

 

OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 
The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted   Prevention of Sexual Harassment 

policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual 

harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. 

 

During the year 20232-2024, no complaints were received by the Company related to sexual harassment and hence no 

complaint is pending as on 31/03/2024 for redressal. 
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PROCEEDINGS UNDER  INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 
 

● The Company has initiated proceedings under Section 9 of Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 against its trade 

receivables M/s. Linkwise Marketing Private Limited and M/s. Nexus Commosales Private Limited, before the NCLT, 

Kolkata Bench vide Company Petition No. C.P.(IB)/86(KB) and 1908134/01725 of 2021 and the matter is currently 

pending before the Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench. Hon'ble NCLT has accepted the matter. 

 

● One of the financial creditor of the Group has filed petition under Section 7 of Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 before Hon'ble 

NCLT, Kolkata Bench vide Company Petition No. C.P.(IB) — 138/2022 dated February 23, 2022 for initiation of corporate 

insolvency resolution process. The Company after negotiations with the creditor reached a settlement, however, the company is yet to 

discharge the remaining liability. 

 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE END 

OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THE REPORT 

 

Consequent to the report of the forensic Auditor undertaken as per the direction of the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India 

to look into transactions between Amrapali group of companies and Sureka group of companies (Companies promoted 

by the Promoters), the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide order dated 02.12.2019 has directed Mauria Udyog Ltd & Company 

promoted by the Promoters other Sureka group of companies and their Directors viz Mr. Navneet Sureka and Mr. Akhil 

Sureka to deposit Rs. 167 Crores. In response to the order of the Hon'ble Supreme Court, it has filed an application on 

09.12.2019 before the Hon'ble Supreme Court to accept the Title -deeds of immovable properties belonging to Sureka 

family members and associate companies (based on latest valuation report) worth amounting to Rs.208.31 Crores and 

after reducing the incumbency amount of Rs. 39.34 Crores balance value of properties work out to Rs. 168.97 crores. 

Based on order of the Hon'ble Supreme Court, directors of the company has estimated a liability of Rs. 30.00 Crores as 

on 31.03.2020 and since original title-deeds of Immovable properties having gross value of Rs. 208.31 crores has 

already been deposited, as guarantee to supreme court, the liability arising from the order dated 02.12.2019 can be 

considered as settled and accordingly it has been recorded in books. 

 

 

EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR 

ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE 

 

1. By the Auditor in his report: 

 

The Auditors’ Report being self-explanatory requires no further comments from the Directors. Please refer to the 

Notes section of the Audited Financial statements for the Financial-year ended on March 31, 2024 forming part of 

annual report.  

 

2. By the Company Secretary in practice in his Secretarial Audit Report: 

 

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimer by the Secretarial Auditors in the Report 

issued by them for the financial year 2023-24 which call for any explanation from the Board of Directors. 

 

DISCLOSURE OF RE-APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR AND 

JUSTIFICATION/RATIONALE FOR SUCH RE-APPOINTMENT 

 

During the year no independent director has been reappointed for second term.  

 

STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE 

AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR 

 

During the year no independent director was reappointed for second term.  
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However Shri Atul Kumar has been appointed as an Non-executive Independent Director wef February 26, 2024 on the 

recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee keeping in view his experience in Finance & marketing 

& international business. The Board had recommended for his appointment to the shareholders who approved his 

appointment as Non-executive Independent Director vide their special resolution passed on  March 29, 2024. 

 

NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT 

VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR 
 

During the year  Company has made  investment in Bihariji Properties Private Limited (BPPL) AND Bihariji Highrise Private 

Limited (BHPL)  on 30th March, 2024 pursuant to which they have become subsidiaries of the Company. Both the companies 

are engaged in the real estate/renting business with owned or leased property 

 

As on 31
st
 March 2024 company has three Subsidiaries namely: 1. M/s Strawberry Star India Pvt. Ltd. (SSIPL) as reported last 

year; 2. Bihariji Properties Private Limited (BPPL) and 3. Bihariji Highrise Private Limited (BHPL). None of the subsidiary 

fall amongst related parties of the Company 

 

SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 
 

Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its interim order cum show cause notice number 

WTM/SM/IVD/ID9/27532/2023-2024 dated 19 June 2023 under sections 11(1), 11(4), 11(4)(A), 11(B)1, 11(B)2 

and11(5) of SEBI Act 1992 read along with SEBI rules 2005, issued interim directions restraining the Company from 

accessing the securities market till further orders and also directed the Company to deposit jointly and severally with 

other notices an amount of ₹ 2,619.69 Lacs. 
 

The Company submitted its reply on 22 July 2023 and has filed an appeal against the said interim order to Securities 

Appellate Tribunal (“SAT”). The SAT vide its decision dated 18 August 2023 has disposed off the appeal and directed 

the Company to file a reply/objection to the show cause notice. Further, the management believes that the impugned 

order is untenable and is liable to set aside. Accordingly, no liability has been recorded by the Company against the 

amount sought by SEBI in the said interim order. 

 

 

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND 

JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES 
 

As on 31
st
 March 2024 company has three Subsidiaries namely: 1. M/s Strawberry Star India Pvt. Ltd. (SSIPL) as reported last 

year; 2. Bihariji Properties Private Limited (BPPL) and 3. Bihariji Highrise Private Limited (BHPL). Financials of M/s SSIPL, 

(BPPL) & (BHPL) have been consolidated and consolidated financials have been reported under the heading Financial Results 

 

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/ KMPs/EMPLOYEES:- 

 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 (2) 

and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached as 

Annexure which forms part of this report. 

 

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND 

REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

 

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during 

the financial year 2023-24, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees 

of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 and the comparison of remuneration with the percentile increase in 

the managerial remuneration and justification thereof. 

 

S. Name of Ratio of % Increase in the % increase in the  Average percentile 
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No

. 

Director/ KMP Remuneration 

of Director to 

median 

remuneration 

of Employee 

Remuneration median 

remuneration of 

employees 

increase already made in 

the salaries of employees 

other than the managerial 

personnel in the last 

financial year and its 

comparison with the 

percentile increase in the 

managerial remuneration 

and justification thereof 

and point out if there are 

any exceptional 

circumstances for increase 

in the managerial 

remuneration 

1  NA NA NA NA NA 

 

There has been no increase in the remuneration of employees including Managing director, Chief Financial 

Officer and company secretary during the financial year 2023-24 in view of financial conditions of the 

company.  

 

Further it is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and other Employees. 
 

 

● Thee details including names of the Top 10 Employees in terms of salary drawn during the reporting period is 

attached as Annexure hereto.  

 

 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

 

There is no change in the nature of business of your Company during the year under review. 

 

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 

 

There has been no change in the accounting policies during the period under review. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

 

The Company has identified all key internal financial controls, which impacts the financial statements, as part of Standard 

Operating Procedures (SOPs). The SOPs are designed for all critical processes across all plants, warehouses and offices 

wherein financial transactions are undertaken. The SOPs cover the standard processes, risks, key controls and each 

process is identified to a process owner. The financial controls are tested for operating effectiveness through management 

ongoing monitoring and review process and independently by the Internal Audit. In our view the Internal Financial 

Controls, effecting the financial statements are adequate and are operating effectively. 

 

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 

 

-No Frauds Were Reported by Auditors Or Reported To Central Government In The Financial Year Ended On March 31, 

2024. 

-None of The Directors of Your Company Is Disqualified as Per the Provisions of Section 164(2) Of the Act. The 

Directors of The Company Have Made Necessary Disclosures, As Required Under Various Provisions of The Act. 

 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
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The Annual Return for the financial year 2023-24 will be  available on the website of the Company at 

https://mauria.com/financials/  

 

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) 

 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs had notified Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, 

Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 effective from 07.09.2016. As per the Rules, Unclaimed/unpaid dividends / shares 

thereon are to be transferred to IEPF at the end of 7 years. The shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or 

claimed for 7 consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to IEPF following the prescribed procedure. The 

company has issued public notice to enable to claim the shares. Such shares remaining unclaimed have to be transferred to 

IEPF Authority within the date prescribed. The holders of such shares or their legal heirs can reclaim the shares from the 

IEPF Authority through the Company following the due procedure.  

 

DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

The Board of Directors has laid down Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the Company. 

The copy of Code of Conduct as applicable to the Directors (including Senior Management of the Company) is uploaded 

on the website of the Company www.mauria.com.  

 

The Managing Director of the Company has issued a Declaration that the Members of the Board of Directors and Senior 

Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior 

Management. As there is no Chief Executive Officer in the Company, this Declaration has been issued by the Managing 

Director of the Company which is appended to this Report, 

 

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION 
 

In terms of the requirements of Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Managing Director and the CFO have submitted necessary certificate to 

the Board of Directors stating the particulars specified under the said Clause. The certificate has been reviewed by the 

Audit Committee and taken on record by the Board of Directors.  

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS  
 

Outlook of Indian Economy: 
 

With a GDP of $3.937 trillion, India is the world's fifth-largest economy. With growths rates  9.7% (FY2022) 7.2% 

(FY2023) 8.2% (FY2024)  the country has one of the highest GDP growth rates in the world. 

  

The Indian economy is expected to perform better than expected in the second half of the year. India’s real GDP is 

projected to grow between 6.5–7 per cent in 2024-25. The Indian economy recovered swiftly from the pandemic, with its 

real GDP in FY24 being 20 per cent higher than the pre-COVID, FY20 levels. . Overall India remains fastest growing 

economy in the world leaving China behind. 

 

India’s underlying economic fundamentals are strong and despite the short-term turbulence, its impact on the long-term 

outlook will be marginal. However any escalation of geopolitical conflicts in 2024 may lead to supply dislocations, higher 

commodity prices, reviving inflationary pressures and stalling monetary policy easing with potential repercussions for 

capital flows. This can also influence RBI’s monetary policy stance. The global trade outlook for 2024 remains positive, 

with merchandise trade expected to pick up after registering a contraction in volumes in 2023 

 

Industry Overview: 

 

As you are aware that your Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading in varied products: 

 

Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG):   

http://www.mauria.com/
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With India’s economic growth closely linked to energy demand, the need for oil and gas is projected to grow further, 

rendering the sector a fertile ground for investment.  

 

Textile:  

With consumerism and disposable income on the rise, the retail sector has experienced a rapid growth in the past decade. 

Changing lifestyles and increasing demand for quality products are set to fuel the need for apparel. The sector contributes 

14% to industrial production, 4% to India’s GDP and constitutes 13% of the country’s export earnings. 

 

The future for the Indian textile industry looks promising, buoyed by both strong domestic consumption as well as export 

demand.  

 

 

COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SEGMENT-WISE AND PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE 

 

MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED (MUL) is an ISO 9001:2008 company certified by BSI, accredited by UKAS.  MUL is 

also certified for OHSAS:18001:2007& ISO 14001:2004 by BSI for its Health Safety and Environmental Management 

Systems.  We are a Govt. of India recognized TRADING HOUSE, for consistent export of our products to various parts of 

the world. Your company is largest manufacturer and exporter in India exporting its products to more than 75 countries 

across the world.MUL exports its products to practically every continent of the world. Products of the company meet all 

key international standard certification including certification for manufacture of cylinders according to DOT for BA/BW 

standard for USA in India. 

 

In the recent past company has entered into American market.  

 

The manufacturing Works is situated at Faridabad, on the outskirts of New Delhi in the NCR region. 

 

You directors are optimistic of future growth of the company. 

 

EXPOSURE TO EXPORTS OF LPG CYLINDERS 

 

WELDED STEEL LPG CYLINDERS 

 

Over the past 30 years MUL has produced the cylinders as per different international standards such as EN 1442, ISO 

4706, SANS 4706, DOT 4BA, KS ISO 4706, ISO 22991, IS 3196, OS 120, NIS 69, AS 2469, AS 2470, SNI 1452, SLS 

1178 and EN 13322-1.  Customers such as BP, SHELL, TOTAL, BOC/LINDE, VITOGAZ and ADDAX  etc. to name 

but a few have enjoyed our international quality at an affordable price.   We have installed rigorous standards with modern 

equipment and a keen and well-trained workforce.  We produce the cylinders from 4.0 litre(1.7kgs. gas capacity) to 120.0 

litre (50.0 kgs.) for LPG and other gases such as ammonia and refrigerants.  

 

The company has made export sales (FOB) during the financial year ended under report amounting to Rs. 24922.62 Lakhs 

compared to  Rs. 16857.23 Lakhs during previous financial year  

 

We are committed to satisfy our customers by providing Quality Product which gives highest value for money. 

 

We believe that employees are our most important asset through which we can reach the top in each category of our 

products and services.  Therefore, we will emphasize on their continuous improvement through upgradation of relevant 

knowledge and training. 

 

We commit ourselves to continuous growth, so as to fulfil the aspirations of our customers, employees and shareholders. 

 

Committed To Quality 
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We don’t just manufacture products, we create satisfaction. Eurospa has deployed extensive resources to ensure the 

optimum quality of its products.  The reiterative tests, the microscopic adherence to quality and inspection, all ensures that 

all Eurospa products are of world-class quality.  We treat each and every product as a challenge, and every achievement a 

reason to set new goals. 

 

MUL apart from manufacturing of LPG Cylinders, Valves, Regulators, Disposable Cylinders, Methyl Bromide Cylinders 

&Refillable Cylinders, being its main activity, has also undertaken the following :- 

 

I.  TERRY TOWEL DIVISION 

 

The company undertakes manufacturing of terry towels in addition to cylinders. MUL has a top-of-the-line manufacturing 

facility to manufacture world-class terry towels as per the prevailing international standards. 

 

Spread over 30,000 sq.ft., this unit boasts of an in-house and completely integrated infrastructure alongwith a talented 

pool of professionals from the textile industry. 

 

The unit comprises of a modern facility and a weaving plant equipped with all the relevant machines.  The ultra-modern 

Terry Towel Manufacturing Unit has the state-of-the-art technology sourced from Switzerland, Germany and Italy. 

 

Your directors are pleased to inform that the total turnover of the Terry Towel Division during the year under report has 
been at Rs.42.88 Crore apart from revenue earned through job -work (sale of services) amounting to Rs. 4.19 Lakhs and & other 

operating revenues  (export incentives/ sale of scrap) of Rs. 23.58 Lakhs  
 

 

Zero Defect Production InTerry Towel 

 

Automatic Fabric Inspection machine has been installed to ensure that only zerodefect fabric goes for production.  To lend 

smooth velvet finish to the products, specialized shearing machines have been imported.  The end product is also 

inspected by the finishing team for even minor defects, if any.  The objective is to ship only those products which reflect 

MUL’s unflinching commitment to quality. 

 

 

II. LPG CYLINDER ACCESSORIES 

 

The company also manufactures various other LPG Cylinder Accessories such as Cylinder Guards, Neck Rings, Burner 

Set, Cooker Ring & Adopter. 

 

RECOGNITION & AWARDS  

 

The company is the recipient of FIEO’s Niryat Shree Bronze Trophy Award for its excellence in exports. 

 

EEPC INDIA, Eastern Region awarded the company on 25.02.2011 Export Excellence for Star Performer as large 

enterprise in the product group of other fabricated metal products, exel machinery & equipment for its outstanding 

contribution to engineering exports during the year 2008-09 and for the year 2009-10 as well which was received on 

20.12.2011 by Shri N. K. Sureka, then director of the company. 

 

The company was also represented in the Annual Premier Vendors’ Workshop conducted by Bharat Petroleum 

Corporation Limited held at Mumbai on 04.11.2011 wherein a Trophy for the best performance was awarded to the 

company. 

 

The Indian Council of Small & Medium Exporters (ICSME) has awarded Niryat Shiromani Puraskar to Shri N. K. Sureka, 

a director of the company and Gold Medal to the company for export performance on 23.03.2007. 

 

The company participated in the “Haryana State Safety and Welfare Awards Scheme” in the year 2006 and the Directorate 

of Industrial Safety & Health, Labour Department, Haryana placed on record its appreciation of the management for 

taking proactive steps by implementing safety, health and welfare schemes for the workers. 
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The Engineering Export Promotion Council of India (EEPC INDIA) awarded Silver Trophy to your Company as National 

Award for Export Excellence   2011-12 on 15
th
 March,2013 in the presentation ceremony held in Mumbai. 

 

Industries & Commerce Department, Government of Haryana conferred State Export Award 2013-14 to the Company on 

08.06.2015. 

 

AUTOMATION 

 

The company is continuously automizing and upgrading the manufacturing facility to meet the latest technological 

advancement. 

 

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R&D) 

 

MUL has its in-house R&D facility and a fully equipped design studio that creates innovative and vibrant designs for 

towels in line with prevailing international trends and forecasts. The studio is equipped with CAD system and is managed 

by well-known and talented designers.It is also fully capable of designing towels as per the buyer’s designs, material and 

colour specifications. 

 

The management of the company also keeps a tab on the international trends by attending various international fairs & 

conferences.  

 

The company’s continued focus on R&D has resulted in several approvals of its products in developed markets and 

significant progress in its initiative. 

 

MUL has a complete and integrated towel manufacturing facility which makes its products internationally compatible in 

terms of quality and price. It also helps to reduce production lead time to a considerable extent.   

 

It is now all set to carve a niche for itself in the competitive international market by exporting world class products.  

 

FORGING NEW RELATIONSHIPS 

 

Having consolidated its infrastructure and strengths, the company is planning to expand and grow its overseas market in 

times to come.  It plans to forge mutually rewarding business associations with its potential clients.  For this purpose, it 

has chalked out an ambitious plan.  The management of the company is committed to provide its clients reliable and 

quality products at competitive prices and thus nurture enduring relationships with them.  

 

The change in the international/local Govt. Policies do have its significant impact on the business of the company in the 

international  as well as local markets, thus, effecting the volume of sales including the exports of the company.   

 

SWOT ANALYSIS OF LPG INDUSTRY 

 

Strength: 

 Over 30 years’ experience in manufacturing LPG Cylinder, Valves and Pressure Regulators. 

 Exporting in over 60 countries all over the globe. 

 Easily availability of raw material, low cost labour and transportation 

 Increasing demand in overseas LPG market 

 Strong experienced management 

 Encouraging export policies 

 Customer loyalty 

Weakness: 

 Raw material Cost Intensive 

 Work inefficiency 
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 Working capital 

 Economic factors 

 Political uncertainties 

Opportunities: 

 Innovation 

 New Market 

 Huge Demand 

 Growing Industry 

 Geographic best location 

Threats: 

 International/regional competition 

 Uncertainty of input cost 

 Continuous govt. interference (Interest rate/Regulatory compliance ) 

 Slowdown in  national/global economy/demand 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

The Company has a proper and adequate internal control system to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected 

against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and those transactions reauthorized, recorded and reported correctly. The 

internal control is exercised through documented policies, guidelines and procedures. It is supplemented by an extensive 

program of internal audits conducted by in house trained personnel. The audit observations and corrective action taken 

thereon are periodically reviewed by the audit committee toensure effectiveness of the internal control system. The 

internal control is designed to ensure that the financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial statements and 

other data, and for maintaining accountability of persons.  

 

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

 

The brief on Financial Performance of the Company is already provided in the Boards‟ Report of the Company. 

 

 

RISK & CONCERNS 

 

At MUL, all key functions and divisions are independently responsible to monitor risk associated within their respective 

areas of operations such as production, finance, insurance, shipping, legal and other issues like health, safety and 

environment.  

 

Cylinders and terry towel products are globally traded commodities and their prices are subjected to international market 

forces of demand-supply and other factors that influence price volatility.  With these two businesses presently accounting 

for the major proportion of MUL’s revenues, changes in global price levels will have an impact on the company’s 

performance.   

 

Your company has identified the following risks with possible impact on the company and the mitigation plans of the 

company: 

 

Key Risk Impact on the Company Mitigation Plans 

Commodity Price/availability  Risk Risk of price fluctuation on 

the basic raw- material like 

HR Coils, CR Coils, MS 

Bunk, Brass, Aluminum alloy, 

zinc-ingots, chemicals, 

Fabrics, grey yarn, Dye power 

etc. 

Adequate level of raw material 

inventory has to be maintained at all 

times to ensure quick turnaround time 

for orders received. Any volatility in 

the prices or disruption in availability 

of raw material can impact the 

profitability of the Company. However, 

MUL has strong relationships with the 
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raw material suppliers and optimum 

level of raw material. 

Uncertain global economic environment- 

slow growth in global economy 

Impact on demand and 

realization of Exports. 

Company’s business is quite diversified 

thereby diversifying the risk as well. 

Company keeps on reviewing   new 

business opportunities. 

Interest Rate-risk. Any increase in interest rate 

can affect the finance cost. 

Dependence on debt is minimum and 

we have sufficient funds with Banks to 

settle the entire debt in case need arises. 

Compliance risk. Any default can attract penal 

provisions. 

By regularly monitoring and reviewing 

of changes in the regulatory framework 

and timely compliance thereof.  

Competition Risk Your company is always 

exposed to competition Risk 

from Asian Countries like Sri 

Lanka, China, 

Taiwan, and other African 

Countries. The increase in 

competition can create 

pressure on 

margins, market share etc. 

By continuous efforts to enhance the 

brand image of the Company by 

focusing on R&D, quality, 

Cost, timely delivery and customer 

service. By introducing new product 

range commensurate with demands 

your company 

plan to mitigate the risks so involved. 

 

As per global trend, all labour intensive manufacturing activities are being discontinued in the developed countries and are 

now shifting to developing countries wherein India is most preferred destination specially of products like Cylinders & 

Towels.  The company is in an advantageous position as far as products manufactured are concerned. 

 

OUTLOOK 

 

The company is taking all efforts to improve the quality and productivity to get more orders at competitive rates. The 

company’s business is committed to achieve world benchmark quality besides expanding on new product offering from 

new clients. Further the business will continue to focus on improving its cost competitive position. These measures will 

ensure the company maintaining its leadership position in the Indian/world market. Due to theown Manufacturing 

/processing plant the company is able to quote better rates and maintain safety of products high quality & productivity in 

the finished goods manufactured. Barring unforeseen circumstances the company is confident of achieving better results 

in the current year. The key risks for the global economy include US-China trade war, exit of Britain from European 

Union and the situation in the Middle East and Africa. The developing nations of Asia are expected to experience a higher 

rate of growth next few years. 
 

The current economic state, fears of high inflation, uncertain international supply chains due to ongoing war between 

Russia & Ukraine and also in Middle-east  and challenging retail environment, pose new threats to businesses across all 

sectors. Your Company is focused on “Survive, Revive, Revitalise and Thrive” strategy and is constantly monitoring the 

factory level performance, driving sales through  online channels and cost optimisation across all functions. Your 

Company is strategically positioned to harness the present challenges, given the strength of its Brand, innovation 

capabilities.  
 

HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

 

Company’s HR philosophy is to establish and build a high performing organization, where each individual is motivated to 

perform to the fullest capacity, to contribute to developing and achieving individual excellence and departmental 

objectives and continuously improve performance to realize the full potential of our personnel.  

 

AUDITORS 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 
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The Company has appointment M/s NKSC & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 020076N), Delhi as the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company in the 40
th
 Annual General Meeting of the Company, on resignation of previous statutory 

auditors M/s L.K. Bohemia & Co., Chartered Accountants, Kolkata having Firm Registration Number 317136N. 

 

COST AUDITORS 

 

The Company has appointed M/s Jaiprakash & Co., Cost Accountants for conducting the audit of cost records of the 

Company relating to LPG Cylinders, Regulators &Valves for the financial year 2024-25. Pursuant to Section 148 of the 

Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit &Auditors) Rule, 2014 ratification of the remuneration of Cost Auditors 

is being sought from the Members of the Company at the ensuing AGM. Further, the Company has maintained all the cost 

accounts and records as required under the relevant laws. 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company, in compliance with section 204 of the Act have appointed Ms. Jyoti Arya, 

Practicing Company Secretary (M. No.-A48050/ COP-17651) of  M/s. Jyoti Arya & Associates, Company Secretaries, as 

the Secretarial Auditors to conduct secretarial audit of the Company for the FY 2024-25. The   Secretarial Audit Report as 

per Section 204 of the Act for FY 2024-25 is placed as annexure to this report 

 

No adverse comments have been made in the said report by the Practicing Company Secretary. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING & 

OUTGO 

 
Information required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014, 

with respect to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings/outgo : 

 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

 

Measures taken, additional investments and impact on reduction of energy consumption 

Disclosure of particulars with respect to Conservation of Energy. 

 

-Company has replaced their entire Thyristor base SAW (submerged arc welding) and MIG (Metal inert gas) welding 

machines from their production with Inverter base machines which consume approximately 30% less input power. 47 nos. 

of 1000 Amps SAW and 40 Nos of 400 AMPS MIG welding sets have been replaced. 

 

-VFD (variable frequency drive) employed with conveyor line and in other machines resulting in power saving. 

 

-Rs. 66.87 lacs have been spent during 2013-14 on acquiring Solar Power Generating system with an object to reduce the 

lighting load and to further reduce the same company proposes to use LED lights.  

 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

 

 Disclosure of particulars with respect to Technology Absorption 

 

 

(i) Efforts in brief made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation &(ii) Benefits derived as a 

result of the above efforts& (iii) Technology Imported during the last three years. 

 

Following steps have been taken for enhancing productivity and quality improvements, resulting in enhanced safety and 

environmental protection measures and conservation of energy:- 

 

 Our company has used latest inverter based technology in welding machines for improving quality and 

productivity of LPG cylinders (welding machines have been imported from China& fully operational.) 
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 Flux recovery system has been employed in SAW welding for ensuring defect free radiographic quality welding. 

 Powered belt conveyers designed and installed for assembly and quality control process removing manual 

material movement & improving productivity. 

 Electrical actuator operated blank lifting system(s) have been designed and installed in all the deep drawing press 

for mechanized loading and feeding of blanks & avoiding operator fatigue. 

 Twin head SAW machines have started operating for welding both dish ends simultaneously for productivity 

improvement. 

 Processing in a machine; trimming and joggling operation together, will remove variation in dimension, improve 

quality and productivity. 

 Manual loading and unloading being replaced in machines by pneumatic and electrical power equipments.  

1. Expenditure on R&D: -NA- 

2.  
Rs. in Lacs 

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO                                                                                      2023-24 2022-23 

a) Earning in Foreign Exchange F.O.B. Value of Exports 

 
24922.62 16857.23 

b) C.I.F  Value of Imports: 

  -Raw material/stock-in-trade 

         -Capital goods/repairs  

 

 

2022.50 

3.41 

 

585.40 

63.74 

c) Commission 

 

2142.48 1600.28 

d) Others 

 

94.26 106.33 

Total 4262.65 19212.98 

 
 
 
 
Details of significant changes in the Key Financial Ratios: 
 
Key financial ratios along with the details of significant changes (25% or more) in FY 2023-24 compared to FY 2022-23 is 
as follows: 

  

        (A).   
Ratios Formulae 

 March 31, 
2024  

 March 31, 2023  % Change Reason for significant change 

a).   Current ratio (in times) Current assets / 
Current liabilities 

0.64 0.46 38.43% Refer note C(i) 

b).   Debt equity ratio (in times) Total debt /  
Total equity 

3.52 10.88 -67.64% Refer note C(ii) 

c).   Debt service coverage ratio (in times) Earnings available for debt services /  
(Repayment of borrowings + Interest) 

2.78 0.68 311.68% Refer note C(iii) 

d).   Return on Equity Ratio (in %) (Loss) after taxes / 
Total equity 

38% -53% -171.20% Refer note C(iv) 

e).   Return on Capital Employed Ratio (Pre 
tax) (in %) 

Earning before interest & tax / 
 Capital employed 

24% 24% 0.00% No change 

f).   Net profit ratio (in %) Net (loss) /  
Revenue from operations 

5% -4% -225.91% Refer note C(v) 

g).   Inventory Turnover Ratio (in times) Cost of Goods Sold / 
Average Inventory 

2.24 1.79 25.08% Refer note C(vi) 

h).   Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (in 
times) 

Credit sales / 
 Average trade receivables 

31.76 23.05 37.79% Refer note C(vii) 
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i).   Trade payables turnover ratio (in times) Credit purchases /  
Average trade payables 

                  
2.86  

1.52 87.79% Refer note C(viii) 

j).   Net capital Turnover Ratio (in times) Revenue from operations / 
Average working capital 

                 -
2.88  

-1.32 118.78% Refer note C(ix) 

        (B).  Explanation on items included in numerator and denominator for computation of above 
ratios: 

   i)  Total debt includes non-current borrowings, current borrowings and interest accrued but not due on borrowings. 
  ii)  Earnings available for debt services: Loss after tax + Finance costs 

    (C).  Reasons for significant changes (25% or 
more) 

     i)  Current ratio has improved due to reduction in current liability on account of settlement of various borrowings as well as receipt of advances for sale of land. 
ii)  Debt equity ratio has reduced due to increase in equity as share application money pending allotment. 

   iii)  Debt service coverage ratio has improved as earning increased and repayment of many loans were done as on March 31, 
2023. 

  iv)  Return on equity ratio has improved on account of profits arising this year. 
    v)  Net profit ratio has increased due to profits arising this year. 
    vi)  Inventory Turnover Ratio has increased in account of increased purchases during the 

year. 
    vii)  Trade receivables turnover ratio has improved on account of increase in revenue in the current financial 

year. 
   viii)  Trade payables turnover ratio has increased in account of increased purchases during the year. 
   ix)  Net capital turnover ratio has decreased due to increase in revenue in the current financial year. Average working capital has turn negative due to reclassification of certain trade 

receivables as non-current. 

 

 

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 
There has been no change in the accounting treatment for preparation of financial results, during the year under review. 
 

GENERAL 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions 

on these items during the year under review: 

 

a) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 

b) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme save and except ESOS referred 

to in this Report. 

c) Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any remuneration or commission from 

any of its subsidiaries. 

d) During the year under review, neither any fraud of any kind on or by the Company has been noticed by the Board of Directors 

of the Company nor reported by the Auditors of the Company. The Company has an internal financial control system, 

commensurate to the size of the business, in place. 
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Annexure-A 

 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

1. The Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance 

  

The Board of Directors and Management believe in adopting and practicing principles of good Corporate Governance 

with a view to: - 

 

- Foster a culture of compliance and obligation at every level of the organization, 

- Safeguard shareholders’ interest through sound business decisions, prudent financial management and high 

standard of business ethics and 

- Achieve transparency, accountability and integrity in the dealings and transactions of the Company. 

 

The Company is incompliance with the provisions of Corporate Governance specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations & 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations, 2015) 

 

The Company is committed to meet the expectations of stakeholders as a responsible corporate citizen. The Company’s 

Code of Conduct contains the fundamental principles and rules concerning ethical business conduct. 

 

2.      Board of Directors  

 

(i) Composition: - 

 

As of March 31, 2024 the Board of Directors comprise of Six Directors as under:- 

 

Brief Particulars 

  Name of Director            Promoter Group Category 

 Shri Navneet 

Kumar Sureka 

He is an Industrialist having 30 years’ experience in the 

Steel Industry and joined the Board as Promoter director 

wef 29
th
 July, 1997. 

Executive-

Managing Director 

Smt. Deepa Sureka She is having 17 years’ experience in the company as 

Officer on Special Duty. She joined the Board as Whole-

time Woman Director (Executive-Promoter Category)wef 

March 28, 2022. 

Executive-Whole-

time Woman 

Director 

 

Non-Independent 

 Smt. Veena 

Aggarwal 

She is in business having 41 years  experience in the field of 

finance & investment. She joined the   

Non-executive-Non-

Independent 

 

Independent 

Shri Birendra Kumar Mr. Birendra Kumar has experience in the field of general 

management & human resources. He joined the Board wef 

March 28, 2022. 

Non-Executive-Independent 

Shri Manohar 

Menghraj Punjabi 

Mr. Manohar Menghraj Punjabi  is employed as Manager 

Finance in private sector in Dubai. He is having experience in 

the field of Finance & accounts & general management.  He 

joined the Board wef 26-06-2023. 

Non-Executive-Independent 

Shri Atul Kumar Mr. Atul Kumar BSc. Hons Electronics is a software 

professional having more than 15 years of experience in 

Software/IT industry. He joined the Board wef 26-02-2024. 

Non-Executive-Independent 
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The Company keeps its Directors informed of the activities of the Company, its management and operations and provides 

an overall industry perspective as well as issues being faced by the industry from time to time. The details of various 

familiarization programmes provided to the Directors of the Company is available on the Company’s website 

https://mauria.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/2022-23-.pdf 

 

(ii) Board Meetings and attendance 

 

Fourteen Board Meetings were held during the financial year ended on 31
st
 March, 2024 and the gap between two Board 

Meetings did not exceed one hundred & twenty days. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. During the 

year a separate meeting of the independent directors was held inter-alia to review the performance of non-independent 

directors and the board as a whole. 

 

The dates on which Board meetings were held are as follows:- 

 

Sl No. Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 

1 11-04-2023 05 04 

2 30-05-2023 05 04 

3 23-06-2023 06 04 

4 10-07-2023 06 04 

5 26-07-2023 06 04 

6 04-09-2023 06 05 

7 12-10-2023 06 04 

8 09-11-2023 06 03 

9 15-11-2023 06 04 

10 30-11-2023 06 03 

11 04-01-2024 06 04 

12 13-02-2024 06 04 

13 26-02-2024 06 04 

14 07-03-2024 06 04 

 

(iii)    Attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and last Annual General Meeting(AGM) and the number of 

Companies and committees where he/she is a Director/Member.   

 

 Name of Director Category of 

Directorship 

Number of 

Board 

Meetings 

Attended 

Attendance at 

the Last AGM 

held on 

30.09.2022 

Number of 

Directorships in  

listed Public 

Ltd., including 

this company as 

on 31/03/2024 

Number of 

committee 

positions held 

in other 

Companies 

1 Shri N.K. Sureka Executive 12 Yes 01 01 

2 
Smt. Sujata Kumar*  

Non-Executive 

Independent 
09 No Nil Nil 

3 
Smt. Veena Aggarwal 

Non-Executive Non-

Independent 
08 No 02 03 

4 
Smt. Deepa Sureka Executive-Promoter 12 No 01 

Nil 

 

5 
Sh. Birendra Kumar 

Non-Executive Non-

Independent 
12 No 02 

02 

 

6 Shri Manohar Menghraj 

Punjabi # 

Non-Executive Non-

Independent 
01 No 01 Nil 

7. Shri Atul Kumar** 

 
Executive-Promoter 01 No 02 04 
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*Resigned wef 26/02/2024 ** Appointed wef 26/02/2024 

# Appointed wef 26/06/2024 

 

Other Directorships 

 

 

S 

No. 

Name of the 

Director 

Names of the listed entities where the 

person is a director 

Category of directorship 

1 Shri N.K. Sureka Mauria Udyog Ltd. Executive-Promoter 

2 Smt. Sujata Kumar Nil Non-Executive -Independent 
3 Smt. Veena Aggarwal 1 Mauria Udyog Ltd. 

2 Quality Synthetic Industries Ltd 

Non-Executive-Non-Independent 

Non-Executive-Non-Independent 

4 Smt. Deepa Sureka Nil Nil 

5 
Sh. Birendra Kumar 

Mauria Udyog Ltd. 

Quality Synthetic Industries Ltd 

Non-Executive-Non-Independent 

6. Shri Manohar 

Menghraj Punjabi 

Mauria Udyog Ltd. Non-Executive-Non-Independent 

7. 
Shri Atul Kumar 

Mauria Udyog Ltd. 

Quality Synthetic Industries Ltd 

Non-Executive-Non-Independent 

 

Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se 

 

Shri Navneet Kumar Sureka, Managing Director & Smt. Deepa Sureka, Director are related as Husband &wife.  

 

 Chart setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the board of directors:- 

Mr. Navneet Kumar Sureka, Mrs. Deepa Sureka, Mrs. Veena Aggarwal, Mrs. Sujata Kumar, Mr. 

Manohar Menghraj Punjabi & Mr. Atul Kumar  possess the below skills/expertise/competence whereas 

other is well versed in his own  fields. 

 

Core skills/expertise/ competencies identified by the board of directors as 

required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s) for it to function 

effectively  

 

Those actually available with the 

board  

 

1. Ability to understand Financial Markets  

2. Ability to understand Regulatory/Statutory framework applicable to the 

Company 

3. Quick decision making 

4. Understanding of Company’s business verticals 

5. Experience in developing policies and processes relating to corporate 

governance 

6. Leaderships skills for guiding the management team  

7. Ability to formulate long term and short term business strategies 

8. Ability to understand Financial Statements 

As per the Board, all these 

skills/expertise/ competencies are 

available with the Board 

 

 Confirmation by the board regarding independent directors 

 

The Board of Directors do hereby confirm that in the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfill the 

conditions specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are 

independent of the management. 

 

 Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before the expiry of 

his tenure along with a confirmation by such director that there are no other material reasons 

other than those provided: During the year ended March 31, 2024 One independent director namely 

Mrs. Sujata Kumar has resigned from the Board of Directors. She has resigned due to personal reasons 

and further, she has  also confirmed that there are no material reasons other than those provided.   
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3.   Audit Committee  
 

The constitution of the Audit Committee is in accordance with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 

2013(here-in-after known the “Act”) and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, 2015. During the year Smt. Sujata 

Kumar, chairperson of the Audit Committee resigned   and Shri Atul Kumar a director & member took over as the new 

Chairperson of the audit-committee wef 26/02/2024.  

 

As on March 31, 2024 Audit committee comprises of  following directors: 

 

Sl. 

No 

Name of Members Category Designation 

1 Shri Atul Kumar Non-Executive-Independent  Chairperson wef 26.02.2024 

2 Shri Navneet Kumar Sureka Executive Member 

3 Sh Birendra Kumar  Non-Executive-Independent Member 

  

 

(i) The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as set-out in Section 177 of the Act & the role as per 

theRegulation18 of the Listing Regulations, 2015  

 

(ii) The Audit Committee had Six Meetings during the financial year 2023-24 ended on 31
st
 March, 2024 as 

per details thereof and the names of Directors who attended the said meetings, are as under:- 

 

Details of the Audit Committee Meetings held during the financial year 2023-24 and attended by the 

Directors: 

 

Name of Directors  

11/04/202 30/05/2023 26/07/2023 04/09/2023 09/11/202

3 

13/02/2024 

Sh. Atul Kumar –

Chairman*(wef 

26.02.2024) 

NA NA NA NA NA NA 

Smt. Sujata Kumar **-        

Member/ Chairperson 

( upto  26.02.2024) 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Sh. Navneet Kumar 

Sureka-Member 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Sh. Birendra Kumar-

Member 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

*Appointed wef 26/02/2024 

** Resigned wef 26/02/2024 

 

4.     Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 

Pursuant to Regulation19 of the Listing Regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the Act, the Board has re-

constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and adopted new terms of reference 

 

The terms of reference for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee includes: 

 

• To formulate a Nomination and Remuneration Policy on: 

 

— determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director, 

 

— guiding remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) and other employees and Board 

diversity. 
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• Recommend Nomination and Remuneration Policy to the Board. 

 

• Identify candidates who are qualified to become Directors 

•Identify persons who are qualified to become Senior Management (Senior Management of the Company means 

employees of the Company who are Divisional Heads and Corporate Functional Heads). 

 

• Recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management. 

 

• Lay down the process for evaluation of the performance of every Director on the Board. 

 

-The constitution of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is in accordance with the requirements of 

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (here-in-after known the “Act”) and Regulation 19 of the Listing 

Regulations, 2015. 

 

During the year Chairperson of this committee namely Smt. Sujata Kumar resigned wef 26/02/2024. Consequent 

thereto a non-executive directors Shri Atul Kumar was nominated on this committee as the new chairperson wef 

26/02/2024.    

 

As on March 31, 2024 this committee consisted of following directors: 

 

Sl. No Name of Members Category Designation 

1 Shri Atul Kumar Non-Executive-Independent  Chairperson wef 26.02.2024 

2 Smt. Veena Sureka Non-Executive-Non-Independent Member 

3 Sh. Birendra Kumar Non-Executive-Independent Member 

 

 

During the year 2023-2024, the Nomination & Remuneration committee met twice to recommend appointment of 

independent directors as the Non-executive director on the Board.  

 

Name of Directors  

23/06/2023 26/02/2024 

Sh. Atul Kumar –Chairman*(wef 

26.02.2024) 

NA No 

Smt. Sujata Kumar **-        Member/ 

Chairperson ( upto  26.02.2024) 

Yes NA 

Smt. Veena Aggarwal-Member Yes Yes 

Sh. Birendra Kumar-Member Yes Yes 

 

 

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Director: 

 

Criteria for evaluation of the Independent Directors;  

 

1. Experience and ability to contribute to the decision making process  

2. Problem solving approach and guidance to the Management  

3. Attendance and Participation in the Meetings  

4. Personal competencies and contribution to strategy formulation 

5. Contribution towards statutory compliances, monitoring of controls and Corporate Governance  

6. The evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire board of directors which shall include 

–  

a. Performance of the directors; and 

b. Fulfillment of the independence criteria as specified in these regulations and their independence 

from the management:  

Provided that in the above evaluation, the directors who are subject to evaluation shall not participate. 
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5. Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 19 of the Listing regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the Act, the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy which provides guidance on: 

 

- Selection Criteria for Directors 

The Company shall consider the following aspects while appointing a person as a Director on the Board of 

the Company: 

 

Skills and Experience: The candidate shall have appropriate skills and experience inone or more fields of 

technical operations, finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration,public administrative 

services, research, corporate governance, or any other discipline related to the Company’s business. 

 

Age Limit: The candidate should have completed the age of twenty-one (21) years and should not have 

attained the age of seventy (70) years. 

 

Conflict of Interest: The candidate should not hold Directorship in any competitor company, and should 

not have any conflict of interest with the Company. 

 

Directorship: The number of companies in which the candidate holds Directorshipshould not exceed  

the number prescribed under the Act or under the Listing Agreement requirements. 

 

Independence: The candidate proposed to be appointed as Independent Director, should not have any 

direct or indirect material pecuniary relationship with the Company and must satisfy the requirements 

imposed under the Act or under the Listing Agreement requirements 

 

Selection Criteria for Senior Management 

 

As per policy, Senior Management for the purpose of this policy shall mean employeeshired at the level of 

Divisional Heads and Corporate Functional Heads or equivalentpositions.The policy provides that the 

candidate should have appropriate qualifications, skillsand experience for discharging the role. The 

qualifications, skills and experience of each such position shall be defined in the job description, which will 

be maintainedby the HR function. 

 

6. Remuneration for Directors, KMP and other Employees 

 

The policy provides that the remuneration of Directors, KMP and other employees shall be based on the 

following key principles: 

 

• Pay for performance: Remuneration of Executive Directors, KMP and other employees is dependent on 

short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goal. The 

remuneration of Non-Executive Directors shall be decided by the Board based on the profits of the 

Company and industry benchmarks. 

 

• Balanced rewards to create sustainable value: The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable 

and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the Directors and employees of the Company and encourage 

behaviour that is aligned to sustainable value creation. 

 

• Competitive compensation: Total target compensation and benefits are comparable to peer companies in 

the manufacturing industry and commensurate to the qualifications and experience of the concerned 

individual. 

• Business Ethics: Strong governance processes and stringent risk management policies are adhered to, in 

order to safeguard our stakeholders’ interest. 
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Performance Evaluation 

The process approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee requires the Chairman to initiate 

the performance evaluation process in the months of January-March every year. The performance 

evaluation is conducted based on approved criteria in the evaluation forms. The process highlights are as 

under: 

a) Board: Each Board member completes the self-evaluation form. Independent Directors discuss the 

self-evaluation forms in a separate meeting and share their feedback with the Chairman. The Chairman 

discusses the evaluation form analysis with the Managing Director and later with the entire Board at the 

Board Meeting  

 

b) Committees: Each Committee member completes the self-evaluation form and shares feedback with 

the Chairman. The Chairman discusses the evaluation form analysis with the Managing Director and 

later with the entire Board at the Board Meeting. 

 

c) Chairman and Executive Directors: Each Board member completes thepeer evaluation form. 

Independent Directors discuss the peer evaluation forms in separate meeting and share their feedback 

with the Chairman. The Chairman conveys feedback individually to the concerned Directors. 

 

d) Independent Directors: Each Board member completes the peer evaluation and shares feedback  

with the Chairman. The Chairman conveys feedback individually to the concerned Directors. 

 

Remuneration to Directors 

 

a) Non-Executive Directors 

 

No remuneration other than sitting fees of Rs. 500/- for attending Board Meetings and Committee meetings 

are paid to each of non-executive directors. There is no pecuniary relationship and transactions with Non-

Executive Directors. The company’s policy for making payment to the Non-executive directors is available 

at https://mauria.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/3-MUL-Criterion-for-making-payment-to-Non-EXD-

1.pdf 

 

(i)    Sitting fees paid to Directors for meetings of the Board during 2024-25:- 

   

Name of Director Amount (Rs) 

Board Meetings 

Amount (Rs) 

Committee-

Meetings 

Total 

Smt. Veena Aggarwal 4000 3500 7,500 

Smt. Sujata Kumar*                                            4500 5500 10,000 

Shri Birendra Kumar 6000 5000 11,000 

Shri Manohar Menghraj Punjabi 500 Nil 500 

Shri Atul Kumar**                  500 500 1,000 

Total 15,500 14,500 30,000 

*Resigned wef 26.02.2024   

 **Appointed wef 26.02.202; 

 

b) Executive Directors 

1. Remuneration paid to Mr. N.K. Sureka, Managing Director 

Amount (Rs.) 

a)  Salary for twelve months of 2023-24 (April,2023 

to March,2024) 

37,80,000 

b)  Provident Fund Contributions                                   21,600 

c)  Perquisites (including Bonus & Earned Leave) 10,47,013 

Total 48,48,613 
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 Service contracts, notice period, severance fees. N.A. 

2. Remuneration paid to Mrs. Deepa Sureka, Whole-time Director 

Amount (Rs.) 

a)  Salary for twelve months of 2022-24 (April,2023 

to March, 2024) 

18,00,000 

b)  Provident Fund Contributions                                   21,600 

c)  Perquisites (including Bonus & Earned Leave) 1,07,756 

Total 19,29,356 

 Service contracts, notice period, severance fees. N.A. 

 

 Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non-executive directors.–Nil 

 

7. Code of Conduct for the Directors & Senior Managerial Personnel 
 

In compliance to the provisions of Regulation 17 (5) of the Listing Regulations, the Board has laid down a code of 

Conduct for all the Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel and all Board Members and Senior 

Managerial Personnel have affirmed compliance of code of conduct as on 31
st
 March, 2024 and a declaration to 

that effect duly signed by the Managing Director is attached and forms part of this report. 

8.    Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 

 

The constitution of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is in accordance with the requirements of Section 178 

of the Companies Act, 2013 (here-in-after known the “Act”) and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, 2015. 

 

During the year Chairperson of this committee namely Smt. Sujata Kumar resigned wef 26/02/2024. Consequent 

thereto a non-executive directors Shri Atul Kumar was nominated on this committee as the new chairperson wef 

26/02/2024.    

  

As on March 31, 2024 this committee consisted of following directors: 

 

 

Sl. 

No 

Name of Members Category Designation 

1 Smt. Sujata Kumar* Non-Executive-Independent  Chairperson 

2 Shri Atul Kumar** Non-Executive-Independent Chairperson 

2 Smt. Veena Aggarwal Non-Executive-Independent Member 

3 Sh Birendra Kumar  Non-Executive-Independent Member 

 

*Resigned wef 26.02.2024   

 **Appointed wef 26.02.202; 

 

 The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee shall consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of the 

company.  

 

During the year 2023-24, Stakeholders Committee met four times and provided status updates to the Board of 

directors of the company. 

 

Name of Directors Date of Meetings 

11-04-2023 10-07-2023 12-10-2023 04-01-2024 

Sh. Atul Kumar*chairman (wef 

26/02/2024) 

NA NA NA NA 

Smt. Sujata Kumar chairperson (upto Yes Yes Yes Yes 
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26/02/2024) 

Smt. Veena Aggarwal Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Sh,  Birendra Kumar  Yes Yes No Yes 

 

 

Ms. Divya Agarwal has been nominated as the Compliance Officer. 

 

Number of pending transfers                                              Nil 

 

Number of Shareholders’                                                    Nil  

Complaints received  

 

Number of Complaints                                                        Nil 

Not solved. 

 

9. Details of Prospectus & letter of offer 

No Prospectus & letter of offer for issuances and related filings were made to the stock exchange where it is 

listed. 

10.     General Body Meetings 

 

Details of Location and time of holding of last three AGMs 

(a) 

 

AGM for 

the 

financial 

year  

Venue Date Time Special Resolution Passed 

2020-21 

41
st
 AGM 

 

AGM held through 

Video 

Conferencing(“VC”) 

or Other Audio 

Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) 

30.09.2021 2:00 

P.M. 

1) Approval for appointment of Sh. Navneet 

Kumar Sureka, (DIN: 00054929) as the Managing 

Director for a term of  Five Years wef 01.04.2021 

2021-22 

42
nd

 AGM 

AGM held through 

Video 

Conferencing(“VC”) 

or Other Audio 

Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) 

30.09.2022 2:00 

P.M. 

Nil 

2022-23 

43
rd

 AGM 

AGM held through 

Video 

Conferencing(“VC”) 

or Other Audio 

Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) 

28.09.2023 3:00 

P.M. 

-1.Special Resolution -Appointment of Mr. 

Manohar Menghraj Punjabi  (DIN: 08666368) as 

Non-Executive Independent Director for term of 
five consecutive years wef June 26, 2023; 
-2- Special Resolution-Issue of Equity Shares on 
Preferential Basis; 
-3- Special Resolution- Issue of equity shares to 

the promoters/non-promoters by way of conversion 

of unsecured loan  

 

 

As per the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the shareholders were given the option to 

vote on all resolutions through electronic means, M/s A G D & Associates, Chartered Accountant (FRN: 
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033552N), Faridabad in practice as the Scrutinizer, for conducting the voting / poll and remote e-voting process in 

a fair and transparent manner connected with the aforesaid AGMs. 

 (b.) Postal ballot (through e-voting) in last 3 years & Details of Special Resolution passed through Postal Ballot: 

 

Financial Year Cut-off 

Date 

Voting 

period 

E Voting 

results 

announcem

ent date 

Resolutions 

2021-22 11/03/2022 

 

28/01/2022 

to 

26/02/2022 

28/02/2022 1-Ordinary Resolution-Sub-division of Equity 

shares of the company from Face Value Rs. 

10/-each to  Face Value of Re 1/-each per 

share 

2-.Ordinary Resolution-To increase the 

Authorised Share Capital of the company & 

consequent amendment in the  Memorandum 

of Association of the company. 

2022-23 20/05/2022 27/05/2022 

to 

25/06/2022 

28/06/2022 1-Special Resolution-Appointment of Mrs. 

Deepa Sureka (DIN: 00060284) as Whole-

time Woman Director (Executive-Promoter) 

wef 28/03/2022 

 

2.-Ordinary Resolution Appointment of Mr. 

Birendra Kumar (DIN: 08666368) as Non-

Executive Independent Director 

 

2023-24 

 

21/09/2023 

 

 

 

 

 

23/02/2024 

25/09/2023 

to 

27/09/2023  

 

 

 

 

29/02/2024 

to 

29/03/2024 

29/09/2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

01/04/2024 

-1.Special Resolution -Appointment of Mr. 

Manohar Menghraj Punjabi  (DIN: 08666368) 

as Non-Executive Independent Director for 
term of five consecutive years wef June 26, 
2023; 
-2- Special Resolution-Issue of Equity Shares 
on Preferential Basis; 
-3- Special Resolution- Issue of equity shares 

to the promoters/non-promoters by way of 

conversion of unsecured loan  

 

 

-1-Special Resolution-Appointment of Mr. 

Atul Kumar (DIN: 00060233) as Non-

Executive Independent Director for a period 

of five years wef February 26, 2024. 

. 

(c)  Details of Special Resolution proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot: Special Resolution w.r.t. 

preferential issue to private investors and issuance of warrants on a preferential basis to the persons belonging to 

non- promoter, public category as enumerated in the Notice to 44
th
 AGM. 

 

 M/s Jyoti Arya & Associates, Company Secretaries (COP No: 17651), Delhi in practice has been appointed as 

the Scrutinizer, for conducting the voting / poll and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner 

during the ensuing 44
th
  AGM to be held on 11

h
 September, 2024 
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11.    Disclosure: 

a)  Materially Significant related party transactions 

 

i All Transactions with related parties were in the ordinary course and at arm’s length and have been disclosed 

in Annexure to AOC-2 attached with this report and note no.47 of  the audited Annual Accounts for the year 

2023-24. 

 

ii   The terms & conditions of the above mentioned transactions are not prejudicial to the interest of the   

Company and there is no transaction of material nature for the year 2023-24 which are prejudicial to the interest 

of the company. The closing balances of such related parties, wherever outstanding, are not overdue.      

 

The Web-link for  policy on materiality of related party transactions and on dealing with related party 

transactions is http://www.mauria.com/Policies.html 

 (b)  Details of non-compliance by the company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock  

Exchange or SEBI or any  statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last 

three years. 

 

For details please refer to Directors Report under heading SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY 

THE REGULATORS 
 

(c) Details of Compliance with Mandatory Requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015  

 

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations including 

compliances mentioned in Part A to Part D of Schedule II. 

 

For details please refer to Secretarial compliance report attached herewith as an annexure. 

 

(d) Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed: 

 

The policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries of the Company is available at  https://mauria.com/policies/ 

  

 

12.   Means of Communication 

 

 Quarterly results: 

The Quarterly, Half yearly and Annual Results of the Company are sent to BSE Ltd in accordance with 

the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 

 Newspapers wherein the results normally published: 

The quarterly and yearly results are published in English in widely circulating “Financial Express”  and in 

Bengali  in “ArthikLipi ” from Kolkata.  

 

 Any website, where displayed: 

The Quarterly, Half yearly and Annual Results are displayed on Company’s website  

www.mauria.com.The Company’s website contains a dedicated section “Investors” under which the 

details/information of interest to various stakeholders is displayed. The Results are also sent to BSE Ltd, 

which is displayed by BSE on its website http://www.bseindia.com. 

 

 Whether it also displays official news releases: 

All financial and other vital official news releases and documents under the SEBI Listing Regulations are 

also communicated to the BSE Ltd, besides being placed on the Company’s website www.mauria.com. 

 

 Presentations made to the Institutional Investors or to the Analysts: 

No presentations have been made to institutional investors or to the analysts during the year under review. 

http://www.mauria.com/Policies.html
https://mauria.com/policies/
http://www.mauria.com/
http://www.mauria.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.mauria.com/
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14.    General Shareholder information 

Company Registration Details   The Company is registered in the State of West Bengal, 

India. The Corporate Identification Number (CIN) 

allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs (MCA) is - L51909WB1980PLC033010. 

 

       AGM :  Date, time and venue                                    44
th

  AGM to be held on Thursday, the September 11,                     

                                                                                         2024 at 03:00 PM at through  

                                                                                        Video-Conferencing or Other  

                                                                                        Audio-Video Means (VC or   

                                                                                         OAVM) 

 

Plant Location:     Mauria Udyog Limited 

Sohna Road, Sector-55 

Faridabad-121015 (Haryana)  

 

 Financial Calendar (Tentative) 

 

Results for quarter ending June 30, 2024                    12
th
 August, 2024 

        declared on    

 

       Results for quarter ending September 30, 2024        14
th
 November, 2024 

 

       Results for quarter ending December 31, 2024         14
th
 February, 2025 

 

       Audited Results for the entire Financial Year  

       ending March 31, 2025                                          29
th
 May, 2025 

 

 Date of Book closure                                       Thursday, the 05
th
 September, 2024 

 to Wednesday, the 11
th
 September, 2024 

 (both days inclusive) 

 

 Listing On Stock Exchanges                  Equity 

                                                                              BSE Limited 

      P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, 

      Fort, Mumbai-400001. 

      Exchange Scrip Code:539219  

Calcutta Stock Exchange  

7, Lyon Range,  

Kolkata-700001   

       Exchange Scrip Code:23114

  

 Demat ISIN Number for NSDL and CDSL.          INE150D01027.      

 

 Stock Code: 539219 

 

 Financial year: April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024 

 

 Dividend payment date: Not applicable  

 

 Address for correspondence: Room.No.107, Anand Jyoti Building, 1st floor, 

41 Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata, West Bengal, 700001 

 



 MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 44
th
  ANNUAL REPORT 

Market price data - High, Low during the each month in last financial year: 

2023-24 
 

 
 

 

 

 High/low of market price of the Company’s  

Shares traded on Stock Exchange during the  

Financial Year ended 31
st
 March, 2024 

The shares have commenced trading on the BSE since  January, 

2017 during the financial 2016-17. The last quoted price during the 

financial year ended 31
st
 March, 2024 was Rs. 8.42  for  equity 

shares of Rs. 1/-each recorded on 28.03.2024.  On Feb 26,     2022 

each of Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each were sub-

divided into face value of Rs. 1/- each. Shares have not been traded 

on CSE during the financial year ended 31
st
 March, 2021 and  the 

last quoted price   was of Rs.3.50 per Share as per transactions on 

CSE on 3
rd

 March, 2000 

  

 Registrar & Transfer Agents                     M/s. Beetal Financial & Computer   

 Services (P) Ltd., BEETAL HOUSE, 

99, Madangir, Behind Local Shopping 

              Centre, Near Dada Harsukh Dass 

Mandir, New Delhi-110062 

 Phone No. 29961281 (6 Lines)                                                   

Fax No.   29961284                                                                                 

 

 Share Transfer System                              All the transfers received are 

processed  by the Registrar and  

Share  Transfer Agent.  Share   

      Transfers are  registered and                                        

returned within  a maximum of         

      15 days  from the date  of lodgment 

if documents are complete in all 
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respect.  In case the  shares are                                                                             

transferred  through   Demat 

mode, the procedure is adopted as  

stated   in Depositories Act, 1996.      

 

 

 Share holding pattern as on 31-03-2024 

Category                                                       No. of Shares                  Percentage  

Promoters                                                         9,84,75,200                      73.93 

Persons acting in concert                                        -                                     - 

Mutual Funds and UTI                                            -                                     - 

Banks, Financial Institution &                                -                                     -  

Insurance Companies. 

FII’s                                                                         -                                     -  

Private Corporate Bodies                  4,17,515  0.31 

Indian Public                                                 3,43,07,285             25.76 

 

NRIs/ OCBs                                                                -                                     - 

                                                                        __________                    ______ 

Total                                                               13,32,00,000                       100.00   

 

 Distribution of shareholding as on 31
st
 March, 2024. 

 

No. of Shares Number               Amount 

  Number of 

Shareholders 

% to Total Number of 

Shares 

In Rs. % To Total 

From To 

01 5000 10062 92.789 6052702 6052702.00 4.5441 

5001 10000 353 3.255 2731448          2731448.00 2.0506 

10001 20000 199 1.835 2983651 2983651.00 2.2400 

20001 30000 86 0.793 2208320 2208320.00 1.6579 

30001 40000 20 0.184 700705 700705.00 0.5261 

40001 50000 22 0.203 1035380 1035380.00 0.7773 

50001 100000 48 0.443 3691381 3691381.00 2.7713 

100001 above 54 0.498 113796413 113796413.00 85.327 

TOTAL 10844 100 133200000 133200000 100.000 

 

 

 Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: The Company is not a sizable 

user of commodities, hence exposes itself moderately to the price risk on account of procurement of 

commodities. 

 

 List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during the relevant 

financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme 

or proposal of the listed entity involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad-  

 

The last Credit Rating that Company had obtained from M/s Brickwork vide its letter dated 23
rd

 

March, 2018  was for the purpose of Bank Loan Facility of Rs. 320 Crore which was valid for a 

period of Twelve Months  from the date of aforesaid letter, was as follows :- 

 

 Fund Based-BWRBBB- (Pronounced as BWR Triple B Minus)  Outlook: Stable Assigned 

 

 Non-Fund Based-BWRA.3 (Pronounced as BWR A Three) Assigned 

 

 Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE SENSEX, CRISIL Index etc. 
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Mauria Udyog Limited BSE Industrials SENSEX 

Month  High price Low price Month  High price Low price 

Apr-23 5.3 4.46 Apr-23 7517.84 7032.49 

May-23 4.79 4.04 May-23 7807.93 7530.82 

Jun-23 6.7 3.95 Jun-23 8560.03 7794.13 

Jul-23 9.32 6.37 Jul-23 9378.41 8517.64 

Aug-23 14.25 7.82 Aug-23 9835.82 9136.17 

Sep-23 14.1 11.19 Sep-23 10409.83 9816.94 

Oct-23 12.25 8.54 Oct-23 10370.79 9479.11 

Nov-23 12.19 8.86 Nov-23 10777.15 9763.93 

Dec-23 11.84 9.71 Dec-23 11627.96 10817.61 

Jan-24 13.81 10.1 Jan-24 12350.02 11449.05 

Feb-24 12.3 9.71 Feb-24 12375.55 11423.79 

Mar-24 11.39 7.64 Mar-24 12685.4 11516.01 
 

 * Market –price of each share of face-value of Rs. 1/-each. On Feb 26, 2022 each of Equity shares of face value of 

Rs. 10/-were sub-divided into face value of Rs. 1/- each. 

    

 In case the securities are suspended from trading, the directors report shall explain the reason 

thereof: 

N/A. The securities of the Company have never been suspended from trading 

 

 Dematerialization of shares and liquidity: 

 

Liquidity:- Out of total number of 13,32,00,000 Equity Shares of the Company 13,30,65,850 equity 

shares constituting around 99.90% of the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital were held in 

dematerialized form as on March 31, 2024 and as such, there is sufficient liquidity in the stock. 

 

 Outstanding global depository receipts or American depository receipts or warrants or any 

convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity: 

  

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments till date. 

 

 

●VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 

Your directors have established a Vigil (Whistle Blower) Mechanism and formulated a Policy in order to provide 

a framework for responsible and secure whistle blowing/vigil mechanism. The Vigil (Whistle Blower) 

Mechanism aims to provide a channel to the Directors and employees to report genuine concerns about unethical 

behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the codes of conduct or ethic policy. This mechanism also 

provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors and employees who avail of the mechanism 

and also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. 

 

We affirm that no personnel has been denied access to the audit committee 

● Recommendations of Committee: All the recommendations as made by the Committees to the   

                                                           board from time to time have been accepted / complied-with by the Board 

                   

● Loans & advances to Subsidiaries:- Nil    

 

Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions 

placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): Information in this regard is nil as no funds 

were raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under 

Regulation 32 (7A) during the year under review. 
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 A certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the Company 

have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 

Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority –Certificate Obtained & Attached 

herewith. 

 

 Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing company secretaries regarding compliance of 

conditions of corporate governance –Certificate obtained &Attached herewith 

 

(e) Total Fees For All Services Paid By The Listed Entity And Its Subsidiaries, On A Consolidated Basis, To The 

Statutory Auditor And All Entities In The Network Firm/Network Entity Of Which The Statutory Auditor Is A 

Part   -  

The required information for the Financial Year 2023-24 is given as under:- 

 

Fees paid to the Auditors 

 

Name of the Company Fees paid for Audit  (Rs.) Fees paid for other services 

(Rs.) 

M/s NKSC & Co. Chartered 

Accountants 

5,00,000 NA 

 

Fees paid to the all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part  

 

Name of the Company Fees paid for Audit Fees paid for other services 

   

NA NA NA 

 

(f) Disclosures In Relation To The Sexual Harassment Of Women At Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition And 

Redressal) Act, 2013:- 

 

a. Number of complaints filed during the financial year  - NIL 

b. Number of complaints disposed off during the financial year - NIL 

c. Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year – NIL 

 

●  Non-Compliance of Corporate Governance Requirement-NIL.   

 

DisclosuresWithRespect toDemat Suspense Account/ Unclaimed Suspense Account: 

 

There is no demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account of the Company because such a requirement never got 

necessitated in relation to the shares of the Company. As such, the information in this regard is Nil. 

 

Declaration by Managing Director on Code of Conduct 

 

The Code of Conduct for the Directors and the Senior Managerial Personnel was adopted by the Board of Directors. All 

the Board Members   and   Senior Managerial Personnel have affirmed  that they have complied with the code of conduct 

during the financial year ended on 31
st
 March, 2024. 

 

                                                MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED  
    

                                        Sd/-                                 Sd/-  

                                N.K. SUREKA           ATUL  KUMAR 

                                 Mg. DIRECTOR          DIRECTOR 

Place: Faridabad                                                                                                   DIN:00054929          DIN: 00060233 

Dated : 20
th

 August, 2024 
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ANNEXURE III 

 

ANNUAL REPORT-2022-23 ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD'S 

REPORT-2023-24 

 

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, 

including overview of projects or programs 

proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the 

web-link to the CSR policy and projects or 

programs. 

 Promoting preventive health care. 

 Promoting Education through schools to the Under 

Privileged Section of the Society. 

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee Chairman- Sh. Navneet Kumar Sureka 

Member -  Smt. Veena Aggarwal  

Member – Sh. Atul Kumar 

3. Average net profit of the company for last three 

financial years 
  Rs. (15490.34) Lakhs 

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount 

as in item 3above) 
 Rs. (309.81) Lakhs 

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year: 

 a) Total amount to be spent for the financial 

year 
Rs. 50.41 Lakhs 

 b) Amount unspent , if any NIL 

 c) Manner in which the amount spent during the 

financial year is detailed below: 

Through Trust, details given below: 

 CSR AMOUNT SPENT IN 2022-23 

S. 

No. 

CSR 

Project and 

activities 

identified 

Sector in 

which the 

Project is 

covered 

Project or 

pro-

grams 

Area 

Amount 

Outlay 

(Budget) 

project or 

programs 

wise (Rs. 

Lakhs) 

Amount spends on 

projects 

Cumu-lative 

Expend-iture 

into the 

report-ing 

period 

(Rs.Lakhs) 

Amount Spent 

direct or 

through 

implement-ing 

agencies 

(Rs.Lakhs) 

Direct 

Expend-

iture       

(Rs. 

Lakhs) 

Over-

head 

Expend-

iture(Rs.

Lakhs) 

1. Providing 

Subsidized 

Medicines, 

education 

through 

schools to 

under -

previleged 

sections of 

the society. 

Schedule 

VII- Sec-

(i)/(ii)/Erad

icating 

extreme 

hunger & 

poverty, 

Promoting 

education 

& 

Preventive 

Healthcare 

 

Haryana, 

Delhi 

 

50  Lakhs 

 

50.41 

Lakhs- 

 

- 

 

50.41 Lakhs 

 

50.41 Lakhs 
/ 

mailto:mauria@mauria.com
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6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial 

years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board 

report.-NA 

 

7. Responsibility Statement:-  

The MUL CSR committee takes responsibility of the implementation & monitoring of CSR policy and also 

adherence to the CSR objective & policy of the company.MUL CSR committee is committed to the CSR 

objectives of the company & will ensure that all proposal & projects under the CSR policy will be monitored & 

implemented from time to time. 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

 

Navneet Kumar Sureka  Atul Kumar   

Chairman- CSR Committee Member- CSR Committee  

Date: 20/08/2024 

Place: Faridabad 

 

Date: 20/08/2024 

Place: Faridabad 
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Projects Approved by the Board for CSR Expenditure  

 

 

 

(A)-Providing Subsidized Medicines, education through schools to under -privileged sections of the 

society 

 

 

For MAURIA DYOG LTD 

 

Sd/- 

COMPANY SECRETARY 
ACS-21071 

Date: 20/08/2024 

Place: Faridabad 
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MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 

Annexure - II 

 

FORM NO. AOC -2 

 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 

related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions during the financial year 2023-24 

not at Arm’s length basis. 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Nil 

b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil 

c)  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil 

d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the 

value, if any 

Nil 

e)  Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’ Nil 

f)  Date of approval by the Board Nil 

g)  Amount paid as advances, if any Nil 

h)  Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required 

under first proviso to section 188 

Nil 

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions during the financial year 

at Arm’s length basis.-As per Annexure 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship As per 

Annexure 

b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction -Do- 

c)  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction -Do- 
d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the 

value, if any 

-Do- 

e)  Date of approval by the Board -Do- 
f)  Amount paid as advances, if any -Do- 

 

Sd/-                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

 

Sd/- 

Navneet Kumar Sureka Atul Kumar 

Mg. Director Director 

DIN-00054929 DIN- 00060233 

 

Date: 20/08/2024 

Place: Faridabad 

 

 



 

 

MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED AOC-2 

Annexure - II  

2023-24 

 

 

 

 
 

Name of related party 
and nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 

Duration of the 
contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 

Salient terms of the 
contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions 

Value 

1 BIHARIJI ISPAT Udyog 
Limited  

Sale  of goods 
and services 
 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 9467757.00 

2 Quality Synthetic 
Industries limited  
 

Sale of goods 
and services 
 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 3256864.00 

3 BIHARIJI ISPAT Udyog 
Limited  
 
 

Purchase of 
goods and 
services 
 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 43771398.00 
 

4 Quality Synthetic 
industries Limited  
 

Interest As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 14412456.00 

5 Sri Narayan Raj Kumar 
Merchants Limited  
 

Interest As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 1906049.00 

6 BIHARIJI ISPAT UDYOG 
LIMITED 
 

Interest 
 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 19686126.00 

7 Be Indi Fashion Indi 
Private  Limited  
 

Lease 
 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 120000.00 



8 TAANZ FASHION INDIA 
PRIVATE LIMITED 
 

Leases  
 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 240000.00 
 

9 JOTINDRA  STEEL & 
TUBES LIMITED 
 

Leases  
 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 0.00 
 

10 Quality Synthetic 
Industries Limited  
 

Leases As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 240000.00 

11 Vehnoudevi Properties   
 

Rent Paid As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 180000.00 

13 Jotindra Steel & Tubes 
Limted 

Sale Of 
Goods/Sevices 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 172400.00 
 

14 BIHARIJI ISPAT Udyog 
Limited  

Lease As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 144000.00 

15 SMT VEENA 
AGGARWAL 

Director 
Meeting Fees 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed       7500.00 

16 SMT. SUJATA KUMAR 
 

Director 
Meeting Fees 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed      10000.00 

17 SH. BIRENDRA KUMAR 
 

Director 
Meeting Fees 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed      11000.00 

18 Manohar Punjabi Director 
Meeting Fees 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed          500.00 

19 SH. ATUL KUMAR 
 

Director 
Meeting Fees 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed        1000.00 

20 BE INDI FASHIONS 
RETAIL PRIVATE 
LIMITED 

Sale of  goods 
and services 
 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 20692500.00 

21 Navneet Kumar Sureka  
 

Remuneration 
Including Perks 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 4827013.00 

22 Deepa sureka Remuneration 
Including Perks 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 1907756.00 

23 Prem Lata Sureka Remuneration 
Including Perks 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 826800.00 



 

 

 

 

24 Davinder Gupta Remuneration 
Including Perks 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 793672.00 

25 Divya Aggarwal Remuneration 
Including Perks 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 180000.00 

26 Deepanshu Sureka Remuneration 
Including Perks 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 1246800.00 

27 TAANZ FASHION INDIA 
PRIVATE LIMITED 
 

Purchase of 
goods and 
services 
 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 4190550.00 
 

28 Jotindra Steel & Tubes 
Limited 
 

Sale of 
Investment 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 127200.00 

29 Quality Synthetic 
Industries Limited 
 

Purchase of 
Investment 
 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 18000.00 

30 Deepanshu Sureka 
 

Purchase of 
Investment 
 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 18000.00 

31 Shri Narayan Steel 
Industries 
 

Purchase of 
Investment 
 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 18000.00 

32 Jotindra Steel & Tubes 
Limited 
 

Purchase of 
Investment 
 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 10000.00 

33 Quality Synthetic 
Industries Limited  
 

Purchase of 
Goods & 
Services 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 337,703,041.00  
 



Annexure __ 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

            

Pursuant to provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(2) &5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the details of remuneration of the employees are given below: 

 

(a) Top 10 Employee in terms of remuneration who were Employed throughout the financial year: 2023-2024 

S 

No 
Name 

Designatio

n 

Annual 

Gross 

Nature 

Of 

Employ

ment 

(Whethe

r 

Contract

ual or 

Otherwis

e  

Qualification 

and 

experience of 

the employee 

Date of 

Commencem

ent of 

Employment 

Age 

If employee is 

relative of any 

Director or 

Manager, 

provide the 

name of such 

Director of 

Manager 

% of 

Equity 

Capital 

held 

1 

Navneet 

Kumar 

Sureka 

Managing 

Director 
3780000 

Company 

Roll 
Graduate 01.04.1995 50 Yrs N.A 2.84 

2 
Deepa 

Sureka 

Officer-on 

Special 

Duty 

1800000 
Company 

Roll 
Graduate 01.04.2007 50 Yrs 

Navneet Kumar 

Sureka 
1.35 

3 
Mohit 

Batra 

Manager 

Marketing 
1626000 

Company 

Roll 
Post Graduate 01.04.2023 39 Yrs N.A 1.22 

4 

Deepak 

Kumar 

Jain 

Manager 

Marketing 
1575864 

Company 

Roll 
Post Graduate 01.07.2023 53 Yrs N.A 1.18 

5 
Manoj 

kumar 

Finance 

Manager 
1256856 

Company 

Roll 
Post Graduate 01.08.2023 37 Yrs N.A 0.94 

6 
Amit 

Aggarwal 

Incoming 

Manager 
1223388 

Company 

Roll 
Graduate 12.12.2022 47 Yrs N.A 0.92 

7 
Deepansh

u Sureka 

V.P. - 

Operations 
1200000 

Company 

Roll 
Graduate 19.07.2021 27 Yrs 

Navneet Kumar 

Sureka 
0.90 

8 
Devender 

Kumar 

Q.C 

Manager 
 1176000 

Company 

Roll 
Graduate 05.04.2023 45 Yrs N.A 0.88 

9 

Ishwar 

Chand 

Garg 

HR/IR 

Head 
1122000 

Company 

Roll 
B.COM/LLB 02.05.2022 58 Yrs N.A 0.84 

10 
Suresh 

Kumar 

PPC 

Manager  
1041972 

Company 

Roll 
Graduate 21.09.2023 37 Yrs N.A 0.78 

  

            

(b) Employees who were in the receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 1,02,00,000 or more per annum :  N.A 

(c) Employed for part of the financial year and was in receipt of remuneration not less than Rs. 8,50,000 per month : N.A. 

(d) Employee who was in receipt of remuneration in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director or whole time director or manager 

and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than 2% of the equity shares of the Company : NA 

 

Note: 

          

1. There were no employee in the Company, throughout the financial year or part of the year, who were in receipt of remuneration 

aggregating Rs. 1,02,00,000 or more per annum or Rs. 8,50,000 per month. 

By order of the Board of Directors 

For Mauria Udyog Limited 

 

Sd/- 

(N.K. Sureka) 

Managing Director 

Date: August 20, 2024 

Place: Faridabad. 

MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 44th  ANNUAL REPORT 



 
 

NKSC & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Unit no. 9, Third Floor, Pearls Omaxe Tower, Netaji 
Subhash Palace, Pitampura, Delhi – 110034 
      www.nksc.in 

  info@nksc.in 
 011 – 4566 0694 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of Mauria Udyog Limited  

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of Mauria Udyog Limited 
(“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone  Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Standalone 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the Standalone 
Ind AS financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except 
for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, 
the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”), of 
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 
Basis for Qualified Opinion 

I.    In the earlier years, the Company has defaulted in repayment of its borrowing taken from 
various banks/ NBFCs and accordingly these loans have been classified as Non-Performing 
Assets (NPAs) by the respective banks/ NBFCs. The Company had not been recognising 
interest on such loans from the date of NPA classification by respective banks/ NBFCs. The 
amount of interest expenses cannot be ascertained. However, such loans have been 
restructured and revised payment schedule has been defined. Further, the balances of 
borrowings are subject to confirmation and reconciliation from the respective banks/ 
NBFCs. 
 

II.    The Company has classified its investments in unquoted equity shares of other entities to 
be Fair Valued through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). However, it has not 
obtained/ carried out fair valuation of such unquoted equity shares. The Company has 
measured investments in unquoted equity shares based on Net Asset Value of such equity 
shares as at 31 March 2023 wherever the financial statements of such entities are available 
as on such date. The impact of fair valuation cannot be ascertained. 
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III. The Company has not used expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain 
on trade receivables as required by Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments”. The impact of such 
non-compliance cannot be ascertained. However, the Company has made a provision of 
Rs. 3,287.79 Lacs against doubtful trade receivables. 
 

IV.    The Company had entered into certain transactions with Amrapali Group of Companies in past 
years. In consequent to which forensic audit was conducted as per the Directions of Hon’ble 
Supreme Court of India to look into transactions between Amrapali Group of Companies and 
Sureka Group of Companies. After which the Hon’ble Supreme Court vide its order No. Writ 
Petition{s}(Civil) No. 940/2017 dated 2 December 2019 had directed M/s Jotindra Steel & Tubes 
Limited and Mauria Udyog Limited including associated companies and Directors viz Mr. 
Navneet Kumar Sureka and Mr. Akhil Kumar Sureka to deposit ₹ 16,700.00 Lacs. In response to 
the order of the Hon’ble Supreme Court, it had filed an application on 9 December 2019 before 
the Hon’ble Supreme Court to accept the Title deeds of immoveable properties belonging to 
Sureka family members and associate companies (based on latest valuation report) worth 
amounting ₹ 16,897.00 Lacs net of incumbency amount of ₹ 3,934.00 Lacs including Properties 
amounting ₹ 10,182.00 Lacs belonging to Mauria Udyog Limited.  
 
In the financial year 2019-20, the Company had charged ₹ 1,500.00 Lacs in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss against the above matter on an estimated basis and reduced the value of 
properties (property which is deposited to Hon’ble Supreme Court).  
 
The Company has neither provided for liability against this matter, nor any amount has been 
shown as contingent liability as required by Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets”.  
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our qualified opinion. 
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Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the 
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 
 

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Loss allowance for Trade receivables (refer 
Note 8 and point iii of Basis for Qualified 
Opinion paragraph) 

 

The Company has trade receivables of ₹ 7813.16 
lacs as at 31 March 2024 (net of impairment loss 
of ₹ 3,287.79 lacs). During financial year 2021-22, 
the Company had recorded a charge of ₹ 
7,300.38 lacs towards provision for doubtful 
debts for such trade receivables. 

Owing to the nature of operations of the 
Company and related customer profiles, the 
Company has significant long standing trade 
receivable balances, for which appropriate loss 
allowance is required to be created for expected 
credit losses using simplified approach in 
accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109, 
Financial Instruments, measuring the loss 
allowance equal to lifetime expected credit 
losses. 

For the purpose of expected credit loss 
assessment of trade receivables, significant 
judgment is required by the management to 
estimate the timing and amount of realization of 
these receivables basis the past history, customer 
profiles, and consideration of other internal and 
external sources of information, including the 
impact of COVID 19 pandemic in aforesaid 
estimates. 

 

Our audit procedures included the following: 

 

 

 

 Understanding the trade receivables process 
with regards to valuation and testing of 
controls designed and implemented by the 
management. 

 Testing the accuracy of ageing of trade 
receivables at year end on sample basis. 

 Obtained a list of outstanding receivables, 
with the identified significant long 
outstanding receivables, and discussed plan 
of recovery lifetime with management. 

 Circularized balance confirmations to a 
sample of trade receivables and reviewed 
the reconciling items, if any. 

 Verified the appropriateness of judgments 
regarding provisions for trade receivables 
and assess as to whether these provisions 
were calculated in accordance with the 
Company's provisioning policies.   

 Tested subsequent settlement of trade 
receivables after the balance sheet date on a 
sample basis, as applicable. 

 Verified the related disclosures made in 
notes to the financial statements in 
accordance with Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 109. 
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Considering the significant judgement involved, 
increased complexities due to the pandemic, 
high estimation uncertainty and materiality of the 
amounts involved, we have identified loss 
allowance on trade receivables as a key audit 
matter for current year audit. 

 

 

 The Company has not used expected credit 
loss model to assess the impairment loss or 
gain on trade receivables as required by Ind 
AS 109 “Financial Instruments”.  

Litigation, Claims and Contingent Liabilities 
(Refer Note 68, read along with point iv of 
Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph) 
 

The Company is exposed to a variety of different 
laws, regulations and interpretations thereof 
which encompasses indirect taxation and legal 
matters. In the normal course of business, 
provisions and contingent liabilities may arise 
from legal proceedings, including regulatory and 
other Governmental proceedings, constructive 
obligations as well as investigations by 
authorities and commercial claims. 

Based on the nature of regulatory and legal cases 
management applies significant judgement 
when considering whether, and how much, to 
provide for the potential exposure of each 
matter. These estimates could change 
substantially over time as new facts emerge as 
each legal case or matters progresses. 

Given the different views, possible basis the 
interpretations, complexity and the magnitude of 
the potential exposures, and the judgement 
necessary to determine required disclosures, this 
is a key audit matter. 

Principal audit procedures performed: 

 

 We understood the processes, evaluated the 
design and implementation of controls and 
tested the operating effectiveness of the 
Company's controls over the recording and re-
assessment of uncertain legal positions, claims 
and contingent liabilities. 

 We held discussions with senior management 
including the person responsible for legal and 
compliance to obtain an understanding of the 
factors considered by management in 
classification of the matter as 'probable', 
'possible' and 'remote'; 

 Examined the Company's legal expenses on 
sample basis and read the minutes of the 
board meetings and the legal compliance 
committee in order to ensure completeness. 

 We read the correspondence from Court 
authorities and considered legal opinion 
obtained by the Management from external 
law firms to evaluate the basis used for 
provisions recognised or the disclosures made 
in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

 We also obtained direct legal confirmations for 
significant matters from the law firms handling 
such matters to corroborate management's 
conclusions. 

 For those matters where Management 
concluded that no provision should be 
recorded, we also considered the adequacy 
and completeness of the Company's 
disclosures made in relation to contingent 
liabilities. 
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Emphasis of Matter 

I.    We draw attention to note 8 to the Statement, which describes the classification of disputed 
and long outstanding trade receivables as non-current aggregating Rs. 7,813.16 Lacs (net 
of provision of Rs. 3,287.79 Lacs) wherein the management has explained the reasons for 
not writing off/ provided for such receivables. 
 

II.    We also draw attention to note 69 to the Statement, which describes that the Company has 
received an interim order cum show cause notice from Security & Exchange Board of India 
(SEBI) and issued interim directions restraining the Company from accessing the securities 
market till further orders and also directed the Company to deposit jointly and severally 
with other notices an amount of Rs. 2,619.69 Lacs. The management has explained the 
reasons for not recording liability for the amount so sought in the order. 
 

III. We also draw attention to note 23 to the statement, which describes the reason for non-
allotment equity shares against the share application money within 6 months of receipt. 
 

IV. We also draw attention to note 32 to the statement wherein the management has described 
the reasons for justification of amount received against the disputed land. 
 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 
 
Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us 
after the date of this auditor’s report. 
 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated.  
 
When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS 
Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in 
equity  and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued 
thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of this Standalone Ind AS financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 
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•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.  
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

(1) As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid 
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid 
down under section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.  
 

(2) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 1”, a statement on 
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
 

(3) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 
 

b) Except for the possible effects of the matter described below in the point h (vi) of our report, 
in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 
 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt 
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account; 
 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder except for the 
matters described in Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph; 
 

e) the matters described in Basis for Qualified Opinion & Emphasis of Matter paragraphs, in our 
opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;  
 

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, 
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 
31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act; 
 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind 
AS financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we 
give our separate report in “Annexure 2”.  
 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
 

i. The Company, as detailed in Note 68 to the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, has 
disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at March 31, 2024; 
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. 

Hence, the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;  
 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund by the Company. 
 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 
 (b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend to or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement. 
 

v. The Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the 
compliance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable. 
 
vi Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting 
softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
starting from 30 January 2024 to 31 March 2024 for all relevant transactions recorded in 
the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance 
of the audit trail feature being tampered with. 
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As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on 
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not 
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 

 

For NKSC & Co.  
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No.020076N 
 

____________________ 

Priyank Goyal 
Partner 
Membership No.: 521986 
UDIN: 24521986BKFKTB2754 

 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 29, 2024 
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’s Report   

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent 
Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Mauria Udyog Limited on the Standalone Ind AS financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024] 

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the Standalone 
Ind AS financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information, explanations and 
written representation given to us by the management and the books of account and other records examined 
by us in the normal course of audit, we report that: 

(i) (a) (A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant & equipment. 

(B)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 
   
 (b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of the property, plant & equipment 

which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification carried out during the year. 

   
 (c) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee 

and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of lessee) disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS 
financial statements of the Company are held in the name of the Company except for the details 
given below: 
 

Land/ 
Building 

Total 
number 
of cases 

Leasehold/ 
Freehold 

Gross Block as at 
March 31, 2024 

(₹ in Lacs) 

Net Block as at 
March 31, 2024 

(₹ in Lacs) 

Remarks 

Land 2 Freehold 8,681.90  8,681.90  Refer Note 11 of 
accompanying 
Standalone Ind 

AS Financial 
Statements 

Building 1 Leasehold 336.40  277.29  Refer Note 3 of 
accompanying 
Standalone Ind 

AS Financial 
Statements 

 

   
 (d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment and/or intangible assets during 

the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (i)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 
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 (e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for 
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and 
rules made thereunder. 

 
(ii) 

 
(a) 

 
The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year except for goods-
in-transit and stocks lying with third parties. For stocks lying with third parties at the year end, these 
have not been confirmed by them. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. As 
informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification carried out during the 
year. 
 

 (b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees during the 
year, in aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions, on the basis of security of fixed deposits 
and there is no requirement to file quarterly returns/statements with such banks and/or financial 
institutions. Therefore, reporting under clause (ii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

   
(iii) (a) During the year, the Company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or 

stood guarantee, or provided security to the following entities: 
   

Sr 
No 

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in the 
nature of loans 

1 Aggregate amount 
granted / provided 
during the year 

    

 - Subsidiaries 
-Joint Ventures 
- Associates 
- Others 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

₹ 1381.50 Lacs 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

2 Balance outstanding 
as at March 31, 2024 
in respect of above 
cases 

    

 - Subsidiaries 
-Joint Ventures 
- Associates 
- Others 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

 ₹ 1501.50 Lacs 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

 
 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that, the investments made, guarantees provided, security 
given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans 
and guarantees provided by the Company during the year are not prejudicial to the interest of the 
Company except given below - 
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Name of Party Relation Loan given  Outstanding at the 
end of the year 

Bihariji Properties 
Private limited 

Subsidiary 1381.50 Lacs 1501.50 Lacs 

 
 

 (c) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest in respect of the loans and advances 
in the nature of loans have not been stipulated as these loans are repayable on demand. Thus, we 
are unable to comment whether the repayments or receipts during the year are regular and report 
amounts overdue for more than ninety days, if any, as required under clause (iii) (d) of paragraph 3 
of the Order. 
 
(d) In respect of the aforesaid loans and advances in the nature of loans, there is no overdue amount 
remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date. 

   
 (e) There were no loans or advances in the nature of loan granted which has/have fallen due during 

the year, have been renewed or extended. Further, there were no instances of fresh loans being 
granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties. 
 

 (f) The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or 
without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Details of the same are as below: 

   
Particulars All parties Promoters Related Parties 

Aggregate amount of loans/advances in 

Nature of loan 

- Repayable on demand (A) 

-Agreement does not specify any terms or 
period of repayment (B) 

Total (A+B) 

 

 

Nil 

₹ 1381.50 Lacs  

₹ 1381.50 Lacs 

 

 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

 

 

Nil 

₹ 1381.50 Lacs 

₹ 1381.50 Lacs 

Percentage of loans/advances in nature of 
loan to the total loans 

100% 100% 100% 

 

   
(iv)  Based on information and explanation given to us in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and 

securities, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act. 
 

(v) 
  

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and 
the rules framed there under. Accordingly, reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order 
is not applicable. 

   
(vi)  We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company in respect of 

products where the maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government 
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and the rules framed there under and we are of the  
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opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We 
have, however, not made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether 
they are accurate or complete. 

   
(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory dues 

including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added 
tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, though 
the delays in deposit have not been serious. 
 
 
No undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income 
tax, GST, customs duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, were 
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. 
 

   
 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, disputed dues in respect of provident 

fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, customs duty, 
excise duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, which were outstanding, at 
the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable are as 
follows: 
 

Name 
of the 
statute 

Nature 
of the 
dues 

Amount  

(₹ In Lacs including 
interest ) 

Amount 
paid 

under 
protest 

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates 

Forum where dispute 
is pending 

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961 

Income 
tax 

17.48 Nil Assessment 
year 2007-

08 

Central Processing 
Centre, Bengaluru 

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961 

Income 
tax 

7.13 Nil Assessment 
year 2008-

09 

Assessment Information 
System 

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961 

Income 
tax 

3.28 Nil Assessment 
year 2009-

10 

Assessment Information 
System 

Income 
Tax Act, 

1961 

Income 
tax 

18.39 Nil Assessment 
year 2017-

18 

Central Processing 
Centre, Bengaluru 

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961 

Income 
tax 

3823.33 Nil Assessment 
year 2019-

20 

Central Processing 
Centre, Bengaluru 

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961 

Income 
tax 

900.38 Nil Assessment 
year 2021-

22 

Central Processing 
Centre, Bengaluru 
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(viii)  We have not come across any transaction(s) which were previously not recorded in the books of 

account of the Company that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the 
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

   
(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in 

repayment of loans to banks and financial institutions during the year. 
 

  
(b) 

 
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority. 
 

 (c) The Company did not obtain any money by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly, 
reporting under clause (ix)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 
 

 (d) On an overall examination of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no funds 
raised on short-term basis have, been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 
 

 (e) On an overall examination of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company, the 
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under the Companies Act. 
 

 (f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, 
joint ventures or associate companies, as defined under the Companies Act. 
 

(x) (a) Based upon the audit procedure performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer including debt instruments and term loans. Therefore, reporting under clause (x)(a) of 
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 
 

 (b) Based upon the audit procedure performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore, 
reporting under clause (x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company 
or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor 
have we been informed of any such instance by the management. 

   
 (b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government by the 

auditors of the Company in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year or upto the date of this report. 

   
 (c) There are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year and upto the date 

of this report. 
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(xii)  
 
 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 
a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not 
applicable. 

   
(xiii)  According to the information and explanation given to us, all transactions entered into by the 

Company with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Act, where 
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements etc., 
as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

   
(xiv) (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature 

of its business. 
   
 (b) We have considered the Internal Audit Reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under 

audit. 
   

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him during the year and hence, 
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

   
(xvi)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to be 

registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore, reporting under 
clause (xvi) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable. 

   
(xvii)  Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding 

financial year. 
   

(xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, reporting 
under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

   
(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, we believe that material uncertainty exists 
as on the date of this audit report and due to which the Company may not be capable of meeting 
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to date of the 
audit report. We further draw attention to note 8 of the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial 
statements which describes the measures taken by the Company to recover its trade receivables. 

   
(xx) (a) There are no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing 

projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act in compliance with second 
proviso to section 135(5) of the Companies Act. Hence, reporting under clause (xx) of paragraph 3 
of the Order is not applicable. 
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 (b) There is no amount remaining unspent under section (5) of section 135  of Companies Act, pursuant 
to any ongoing project, has been transferred to special account in compliance with provision of sub 
section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. 
 

(xxi)  
 
 

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone 
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of 
said clause under this report. 

   
 

For NKSC & Co.  
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. 020076N 
 

___________________ 

Priyank Goyal 
Partner 
Membership No.: 521986 
UDIN: 24521986BKFKTB2754 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 29, 2024 
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

[Referred to in paragraph 3 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent 
Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Mauria Udyog Limited on the Standalone Ind AS financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024]   
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Mauria Udyog Limited (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 
 
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Ind AS financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting   
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 
 
  
For NKSC & Co.  
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No.020076N 
 
 

__________________ 
Priyank Goyal 
Partner 
Membership No. 521986 
UDIN: 24521986BKFKTB2754 
 
Place: New Delhi     
Date: May 29, 2024 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Members of Mauria Udyog Limited  
 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Mauria Udyog Limited  
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries Strawberry Star India Private 
Limited, Bihariji Highrise Private Limited and Bihariji Properties Private Limited (the Holding Company 
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements including a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as “consolidated Ind AS financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except 
for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, 
the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”), of 
the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2024, its profit including other comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Qualified Opinion 

I.    In the earlier years, the Group has defaulted in repayment of its borrowing taken from various 
banks/ NBFCs and accordingly these loans have been classified as Non-Performing Assets 
(NPAs) by the respective banks/ NBFCs. The Group had not been recognising interest on such 
loans from the date of NPA classification by respective banks/ NBFCs. The amount of interest 
expenses cannot be ascertained. However, such loans have been restructured and revised 
payment schedule has been defined. Further, the balances of borrowings are subject to 
confirmation and reconciliation from the respective banks/ NBFCs NBFCs. 
 

II.    The Group has classified its investments in unquoted equity shares of other entities to be Fair 
Valued through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). However, it has not obtained/ carried 
out fair valuation of such unquoted equity shares. The Company has measured investments in 
unquoted equity shares based on Net Asset Value of such equity shares as at 31 March 2023 
wherever the financial statements of such entities are available as on such date. The impact of 
fair valuation cannot be ascertained. 
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III.    The Group has not used expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain on 
trade receivables as required by Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments”. The impact of such non-
compliance cannot be ascertained. However, the Company has made a provision of Rs. 3,287.79 
Lacs against doubtful trade receivables. 
 

IV.    The Group had entered into certain transactions with Amrapali Group of Companies in past 
years. In consequent to which forensic audit was conducted as per the Directions of Hon’ble 
Supreme Court of India to look into transactions between Amrapali Group of Companies and 
Sureka Group of Companies. After which the Hon’ble Supreme Court vide its order No. Writ 
Petition{s}(Civil) No. 940/2017 dated 2 December 2019 had directed M/s Jotindra Steel & Tubes 
Limited and Holding company Mauria Udyog Limited including associated companies and 
Directors viz Mr. Navneet Kumar Sureka and Mr. Akhil Kumar Sureka to deposit ₹ 16,700.00 
Lacs. In response to the order of the Hon’ble Supreme Court, it had filed an application on 9 
December 2019 before the Hon’ble Supreme Court to accept the Title deeds of immoveable 
properties belonging to Sureka family members and associate companies (based on latest 
valuation report) worth amounting ₹ 16,897.00 Lacs net of incumbency amount of ₹ 3,934.00 
Lacs including Properties amounting ₹ 10,182.00 Lacs belonging to Holding Company Mauria 
Udyog Limited.  
 
In the financial year 2019-20, the Holding Company had charged ₹ 1,500.00 Lacs in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss against the above matter on an estimated basis and reduced the 
value of properties (property which is deposited to Hon’ble Supreme Court).  
 
The Group has neither provided for liability against this matter, nor any amount has been shown 
as contingent liability as required by Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets”.   
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
qualified opinion. 

Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and 
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 
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Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

 

Loss allowance for Trade receivables  

(refer Note 8 and point iii of Basis for 
Qualified Opinion paragraph) 

 

 

The Group has trade receivables of ₹ 7813.16 lacs 
as at 31 March 2024 (net of impairment loss of ₹ 

3,287.79 lacs).  

 

Owing to the nature of operations of the Group 
and related customer profiles, the Group has 
significant long standing trade receivable 
balances, for which appropriate loss allowance is 
required to be created for expected credit losses 
using simplified approach in accordance with the 
requirements of Ind AS 109, Financial 
Instruments, measuring the loss allowance equal 
to lifetime expected credit losses. 

 

For the purpose of expected credit loss 
assessment of trade receivables, significant 
judgment is required by the management to 
estimate the timing and amount of realization of 
these receivables basis the past history, customer 
profiles, and consideration of other internal and 
external sources of information, including the 
impact of COVID 19 pandemic in aforesaid 
estimates. 

 

Considering the significant judgement involved, 
increased complexities due to the pandemic, 
high estimation uncertainty and materiality of the 
amounts involved, we have identified loss 

 

Our audit procedures included the following: 

 

 

 

 Understanding the trade receivables process 
with regards to valuation and testing of 
controls designed and implemented by the 
management. 

 Testing the accuracy of ageing of trade 
receivables at year end on sample basis. 

 Obtained a list of outstanding receivables, 
with the identified significant long 
outstanding receivables, and discussed plan 
of recovery lifetime with management. 

 Circularized balance confirmations to a 
sample of trade receivables and reviewed 
the reconciling items, if any. 

 Verified the appropriateness of judgments 
regarding provisions for trade receivables 
and assess as to whether these provisions 
were calculated in accordance with the 
Group provisioning policies.   

 Tested subsequent settlement of trade 
receivables after the balance sheet date on a 
sample basis, as applicable. 

 Verified the related disclosures made in 
notes to the financial statements in 
accordance with Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 109. 

 The Group has not used expected credit loss 
model to assess the impairment loss or gain 
on trade receivables as required by Ind AS 
109 “Financial Instruments”.  
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allowance on trade receivables as a key audit 
matter for current year audit. 

Litigation, Claims and Contingent Liabilities 
(Refer Note 68, read along with point iv of 
Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph) 

 

The Group is exposed to a variety of different 
laws, regulations and interpretations thereof 
which encompasses indirect taxation and legal 
matters. In the normal course of business, 
provisions and contingent liabilities may arise 
from legal proceedings, including regulatory and 
other Governmental proceedings, constructive 
obligations as well as investigations by 
authorities and commercial claims. 

Based on the nature of regulatory and legal cases 
management applies significant judgement 
when considering whether, and how much, to 
provide for the potential exposure of each 
matter. These estimates could change 
substantially over time as new facts emerge as 
each legal case or matters progresses. 

Given the different views, possible basis the 
interpretations, complexity and the magnitude of 
the potential exposures, and the judgement 
necessary to determine required disclosures, this 
is a key audit matter. 

Principal audit procedures performed: 

 

 We understood the processes, evaluated the 
design and implementation of controls and 
tested the operating effectiveness of the 
Group controls over the recording and re-
assessment of uncertain legal positions, claims 
and contingent liabilities. 

 We held discussions with senior management 
of holding company including the person 
responsible for legal and compliance to obtain 
an understanding of the factors considered by 
management in classification of the matter as 
'probable', 'possible' and 'remote'; 

 Examined the Group legal expenses on sample 
basis and read the minutes of the board 
meetings and the legal compliance committee 
in order to ensure completeness. 

 We read the correspondence from Court 
authorities and considered legal opinion 
obtained by the holding company 
Management from external law firms to 
evaluate the basis used for provisions 
recognised or the disclosures made in the 
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

 We also obtained direct legal confirmations for 
significant matters from the law firms handling 
such matters to corroborate holding comapny 
management's conclusions. 

 For those matters where holding company 
Management concluded that no provision 
should be recorded, we also considered the 
adequacy and completeness of the Group 
disclosures made in relation to contingent 
liabilities. 
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Emphasis of Matter 

I.    We draw attention to note 8 to the Statement, which describes the classification of disputed 
and long outstanding trade receivables as non-current aggregating Rs. 7,813.16 Lacs (net of 
provision of Rs. 3,287.79 Lacs) wherein the management has explained the reasons for not 
writing off/ provided for such receivables. 
 

II.    We also draw attention to note 69 to the Statement, which describes that the Group has 
received an interim order cum show cause notice from Security & Exchange Board of India 
(SEBI) and issued interim directions restraining the Company from accessing the securities 
market till further orders and also directed the Company to deposit jointly and severally with 
other notices an amount of Rs. 2,619.69 Lacs. The management has explained the reasons for 
not recording liability for the amount so sought in the order. 

 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon 
 
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the 
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
  
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report 
in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Ind 
AS Financial Statements  
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company’s 
Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act 
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance 
(including other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows 
of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
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estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 
 
In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing 
the financial reporting process of the Group. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;   
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and subsidiary companies which are 
companies incorporated in India, have adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls; 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management; 
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Group to cease to continue as a going concern; 
   

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation and 
  

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion 
on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of such entities included in the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other 
entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have been audited by other 
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 
included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters 

We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements of the subsidiaries whose Ind AS financial statements 
reflects net assets of ₹ (4,936.99) lacs as at March 31, 2024 for the year ended on that date, as considered 
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in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. These Ind AS financial statements have been audited 
by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included 
in respect of this subsidiaries, and our report in terms of section 143(3) of the Act, in so far as it relates 
to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our 
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the Ind AS financial statements 
certified by the management. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

(1) As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit and on the consideration of the report(s) 
of the other auditor(s), referred to paragraph above, on separate financial statements of the 
subsidiaries, we report that the Holding Company have paid remuneration to their respective 
directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 
read with Schedule V to the Act. Further, we report that subsidiaries, incorporated in India whose 
financial statements have been audited under the Act have not paid or provided for any managerial 
remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not 
applicable in respect of such subsidiaries. 
 

(2) With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of 
the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given 
to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
and taking into consideration the reports of other auditors on separate Ind AS financial statements 
of subsidiaries included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company, to 
which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that following adverse remarks were reported 
by the other auditors in the Order reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 for which such Order reports have been issued till date 
and made available to us. 

 
Strawberry Star India Private Limited 
Clause (xvii) 
According to information and explanations given to us, the company has incurred cash loss of ₹ 0.06 
Lacs in current year and cash loss of ₹ 0.06 Lacs in the immediately previous financial year. 
 
Bihariji Properties Private Limited 
Clause (xvii) 
According to information and explanations given to us, the company has incurred cash loss in current 
year and cash loss in the immediately previous financial year. 
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Clause (xix) 
On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, we are not able to comment upon material uncertainty 
capability of Company of meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assessment of future viability of 
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance nor any suspicion that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged/ defaulted 
by the Company as and when they fall due. 
 
Bihariji Highrise Private Limited 
Clause (xvii) 
According to information and explanations given to us, the company has incurred cash loss in current 
year and cash loss in the immediately previous financial year. 
 
Clause (xix) 
On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, we are not able to comment upon material uncertainty 
capability of Company of meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assessment of future viability of 
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance nor any suspicion that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged/ defaulted 
by the Company as and when they fall due. 
 

(3) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of 
the other auditors on separate Ind AS financial statements and the other financial information of 
subsidiaries, as noted in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements; 

 
b.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 

aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors except for the matters 
stated in paragraph h(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) if the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended); 
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c.  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements; 

 
d.  In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS 

prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 

 
f.  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 

Company as on March 31, 2024 and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, incorporated 
in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified 
as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act; 

 
g.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”; 

 
h.     With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i. The Group as detailed in Note 65 to the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, has 

disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at March 31, 2024; 
 

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence, 
the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;  

 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund by the Group. 
 

iv. (a) The Management of holding company has represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in notes to the accounts, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend to or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
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(b) The management of holding company has represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Group from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement. 

 
v. The Group has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the 

compliance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable. 
 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the 
respective auditors of the subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India and 
audited under the Act, except for the instances mentioned below, the Holding Company, 
and its subsidiaries in respect of financial year commencing on 1 April 2023, have used 
accounting software for maintaining their books of account which has a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have been operated throughout the 
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of 
our audit we and respective auditors of the above referred subsidiaries did not come 
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, other than the 
consequential impact of the exception given below: 

 
Nature of exceptions 
noted 

Company Name Details of exception 

Instances of accounting 
software for maintaining 
books of account for 
which the feature of 
recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility was not 
operated throughout the 
year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in 
the software 

Mauria Udyog 
Limited 

Based on our examination, which 
included test checks, the Company 
has used accounting softwares for 
maintaining its books of account for 
the financial year ended March 31, 
2024 which has a feature of recording 
audit trail (edit log) facility and the 
same has operated starting from 30 
January 2024 to 31 March 2024 for all 
relevant transactions recorded in the 
softwares. Further, during the course 
of our audit we did not come across 
any instance of the audit trail feature 
being tampered with. 
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Instances of accounting 
software for maintaining 
books of account which 
did not have a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility 

Bihariji Highrise 
Private Limited 
and Bihariji 
Properties Private 
Limited 

Based on our examination, the 
Company has used accounting 
software for maintaining its books of 
account for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2024 wherein the 
accounting software did not have the 
feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility/did not have the audit 
trail feature enabled throughout the 
year (Refer note 1 (5) notes to 
accounts of the Financial Statements). 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 
applicable from April 1, 2023, 
reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit 
trail as per the statutory requirements 
for record retention is not applicable 
for the year ended March 31, 2024. 

 

 
For NKSC & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. 020076N 
 

 

 

Priyank Goyal 

Partner 
Membership No.: 521986 
UDIN: 24521986BKFKTC8126 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 29, 2024 
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

[Referred to in Para 2 of the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent 
Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Mauria Udyog Limited on the consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024] 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) 
of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Mauria Udyog Limited 
(“Company” or “Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and 
subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and subsidiary companies controlled 
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial 
statements criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements of Holding Company and subsidiary companies, which are companies 
incorporated in India based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the  
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other 
auditors, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
 
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and 
based on consideration of reporting of other auditors as mentioned in Other Matter paragraph, the 
Holding Company and subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and 
such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2024, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. 
 
Other Matters 
 
We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements of subsidiaries whose Ind AS financial statements 
reflects net assets of ₹ (4936.99) lacs as at March 31, 2024 for the year ended on that date, as 
considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. These Ind AS financial statements have 
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our 
opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 
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disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of section 143(3) of the 
Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other 
auditors. The internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to 
such subsidiary companies and associate company have been audited by other auditors whose 
reports has been furnished to us by the management and our report on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements for the Holding 
Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company, as aforesaid, under Section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act in so far as it relates to such subsidiary companies is based solely on the reports of the 
auditors of such companies. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our 
reliance on the work done by and on the reports of the other auditors. 

  
For NKSC & Co.  
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. 020076N 

 

 

 

 

Priyank Goyal 
Partner 
Membership No.: 521986 
UDIN: 24521986BKFKTC8126 
 
Place: New Delhi  
Date: May 29, 2024     
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